
PLEASE TURN OFF ALL CELL PHONES& PAGERS IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

AGENDA

L
IELD CITY COUNCIL TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 20, 2016- 7:00 p.m.

R MEETING CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS- 6390 Town Hall Dr.

Public Comment: To address the Council, speakers are asked to sign in and will be heard in the order of sign-up. Public comments
shall be made at the podium with a three-minute time limit per speaker. Please begin by stating your name and address

Consent Agenda: Items listed under Consent Agenda are considered routine in nature and will be enacted by a single roll call vote.
There will be no separate discussion on these items unless a Council Member or citizen so requests. In that event the item will be
removed from the Consent Agenda and considered in normal sequence.

Paqe

1.  Call Meeting To Order

2.  Pledge of Allegiance

3.  Roll Call:  Mayor Brad Johnson, Councilors Tom Cook, Mike Erickson,

Mike Hoekstra, Mark Holten

4.'  Approve agenda, with any amendments

5   * Public Comment/Response to Public Comment

6.  ** Consent A enda

A.  Approve payment of claims in the amount of$ 98,630.95 3-6

Check# 26871- 26900

General Fund 92,372.38

Industrial Park Water 161. 85

Industrial Park Sewer 45.43

Stormwater Management 3,463.27

Developer Escrow 2, 588.02

B. Approve minutes of the September 6, 2016 Council workshop 7

C..Approve minutes of the September 6, 2016 Council meeting 8- 10

D. Adopt Resolution No. 16-30: Resolution Reducing Debt Service 11- 12

Tax Levies for 2017

7.   Discussion/Action Items

A. Pleasant Meadows Final Plat 13-63

1) Adopt Resolution No. 16- 31: Resolution Approving the Final 19-20

Platting of the Pheasant Meadows Estates Subdivision

1-



PLEASE TURN OFF ALL CELL PHONES& PAGERS IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

Page

B.  Comp Plan Update Proposal 64- 70

C.  2016 Paved Street Patching 71

1) Adopt Resolution No. 16-32: Resolution Accepting Quote for 72

the 2016 Paving Street Project

D.  One-ton Light Duty Dump Truck Replacement 73

E. Amend City Code as it relates to Lake Sarah Regulations 74- 77

1) Pass Ordinance No.2016-03: An Ordinance to Amend City Code 78-79

Chapter 95 as it Relates to Lake Sarah Regulations

F. Approve pay step increase for the Assistant to the City Administrator 80

8.  Information/Miscellaneous

A.  Comments/reports from Mayor

B.  Comments/ reports from Councilors

C.  Comments/ reports from City Administrator
D.  Correspondence:

9. Adiourn

Note: This is a preliminary agenda and is subject to change. The council will adopt a final agenda at the meeting.

2-



CITY OF GREENFIELD
09/ 14/ 16 12: 59 PM

Page 1

Check Detail Register©

September 2016

Check Amt Invoice Comment

10100 Bank West

Paid Chk# 026871 9/20/2016 ACE HARDWARE

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 28. 24 16-08/ 31 OCH Well

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 14.98 16-08/31 Marking Paint

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 126.90 16-08/ 31 Weed Whip Repair

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 19.48 16-08/31 Broom& Whisk

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 22.47 16-08/ 31 Marking Paing

Total ACE HARDWARE 212.07

Paid Chk# 026872 9/20/ 2016 AFFORDABLE SANITATION

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 199.50 468 Monthly Service(Handicap)

Total AFFORDABLE SANITATION 199.50

Paid Chk# 026873 9/20/2016 AFLAC

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 68.28 16- 10/ 01 monthly premium

Total AFLAC 68.28

Paid Chk# 026874 9/20/2016 AMERIPRIDE SERVICES INC

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 6.00 1003555220 Service Charge

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 14.71 1003555220 Mats

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 5.90 1003555220 Kris

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 5.92 1003555220 Jeremy

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 3.36 1003555220 Towels

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 5.90 1003555220 Justin

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 14. 71 1003561560 Mats

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 5.90 1003561560 Justin

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 10. 02 1003561560 Jeremy

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 5. 90 1003561560 Kris

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 6.00 1003561560 Service Charge

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable-       336 1003561660 Towels

Total AMERIPRIDE SERVICES INC 87.68

Paid Chk# 026875 9/ 20/ 2016 BERGANKDV
r,. _....

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 300.00 930945 Debt Service& Property Tax Analysis

Total BERGANKDV 300.00

Paid Chk# 026876 9/20%2016 CARSON, CLELLAND& SCHREDER

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 106.88 16- 08/30 Civil w/expenses-Lk Sarah Wake Ord.

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 686.68 16- 08/30 Criminal w/expenses

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 341. 25 16-08/30 Criminal- Ritter Nuisance

Total CARSON, CLELLAND& SCHREDER      $ 1, 134.81

Paid Chk# 026877
t

9/20/2016 CENTERPOINT ENERGY-GAS

G 603-20200 Accounts Payable 45.43 16-09/06 8555 State Hwy 55 ( WWTP)

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 22. 19 16-09/06 7738 Commerce Circle

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 16.94 16-09/ 06 6390 Town Hall- Main( Shop)

G 601- 20200 Accounts Payable 15.85 16-09/ 06 7700 69th Ave( WTP)

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 15.85 16-09/06 6390 Town Hall- City

Total CENTERPOINT ENERGY-GAS 116.26

id Chk# 026878 9/20/2016 CENTURYLINK

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 38.46 16-08/25 Phone service

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 354.26 16-08/28 Phone service

Total CENTURYLINK 392. 72

3-



CITY OF GREENFIELD 09/ 14/ 16 12: 59 PM

Page 2

Check Detail Register©

September 2016

Check Amt Invoice Comment

Paid Chk# 026879 9/20/ 2016 EARL F ANDERSEN INC

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 194.00 112146 Greenfield City Limits Sign
Total EARL F ANDERSEN INC 194.00

Paid Chk# 026880  - 9/20/2016 ENVIROTECH SERVICES INC

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 3,038.63 201619651 Dust Control Touch Ups

Total ENVIROTECH SERVICES INC      $ 3,038.63

Paid Chk# 026881 9/20/2016 FOBBE, CHRISTINA D

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 100.00 16- 09/01 Cleaning City Hall
Total FOBBE, CHRISTINA D 100. 00

Paid Chk# 026882 9/20/2016 G F HAYES 8 SONS ELECTRIC INC

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 585.00 6235 Replace Lights, Ballasts& Lamps City Hall& OTH

Total G F HAYES& SONS ELECTRIC INC 585.00

Paid Chk# 026883 9/ 20/2016 HAKANSON ANDERSON ASSOC. INC.

G 820-20200 Accounts Payable 165.00 36660 Preliminary Plat Review

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 935.00 36661 Estimates for 3 Resconstructs-Salem, Pioneer,
Commerce

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 10,931. 00 36661 Plans& Specs.- Pioneer Trail& Commerce Circle

Total HAKANSON ANDERSON ASSOC. INC.     $ 12, 031. 00

aid Chk# 026884 9/ 20/2016 HOLIDAY CREDIT OFFICE

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 287.07 16- 09/08 Fuel

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 12. 56 16-09/08 Elections

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 3.89) 16-09/08 Credit

Total HOLIDAY CREDIT OFFICE 295. 74

Paid Chk# 026885 9/20/2016 INNOVATIVE OFFICE SOLUTIONS LL

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 26.89 1295567 Paper

Total INNOVATIVE OFFICE SOLUTIONS LL 26.89

Kk#__...-. _
1. 

6 .._Cf Ch026886 9/20/2016 KONICA MINOLTA BUSINESS SOLUTI

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 46.04 241306073 Color Copy Overage
G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 3. 56 241306073 B& W Copy Overage
G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 28.50 241306073 Base Monthly Rate

Total KONICA MINOLTA BUSINESS SOLUTI 78. 10

Paid Chk# 026887 9/ 20/2016 LEAGUE OF MN CITIES

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 30.00 16-09/ 01 Mayor/Council Training
G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 3,047.00 238696 Annual Membership Dues

Total LEAGUE OF MN CITIES      $ 3,077.00

Paid Chk# 026888 9/20/2016 MENARDS

G 604-20200 Accounts Payable 46.77 22120 Ursula Culvert Supplies

Total MENARDS 46. 77

Paid Chk# 026889 9/20/2016 MN DEPT OF HEALTH

G 601- 20200 Accounts Payable 146. 00 16-09/01 Quarterly Water Connection Fee
Total MN DEPT OF HEALTH 146.00

Olid Ckk# 026890 9%20/2016
11

OREILLY AUTO PARTS

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 41. 98 1524- 183943 WAM Oil

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 343.09 1524- 185372 1/ 2 Ton Brakes

4-



CITY OF GREENFIELD
09/ 14/ 16 12:59 PM

Page 3

Check Detail Register©

September 2016

Check Amt Invoice Comment

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 69. 76) 1524- 185662 Parts Retum

Total OREILLY AUTO PARTS 315.31

Paid Chk# 026891 9/20/2016 PEARSON BROS., INC.

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 66,821. 00 3948 Seal Coating

Total PEARSON BROS., INC.     $ 66, 821. 00

Paid Chk# 026892 9/20/ 2016 PREMIUM WATERS INC

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 57. 04 603275-08- 16 Monthly Water
Total PREMIUM WATERS INC 57.04

Paid Chk# 026893 9/20/2016 SCHAEFFERS SPECIALIZED LUBRICA

G 100- 20200 Accounts Payable 997. 15 1557 Bulk Motor Oil

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 997. 15 1566 Oil

otal SCHAEFFERS SPECIALIZED LUBRICA      $ 1, 994. 30

Paid Chk# 026894 9/20%2016-  SKOOG, JOHN

G 820-20200 Accounts Payable 2, 423.02 16-09/ 07 Escrow Refund

Total SKOOG, JOHN      $ 2,423.02

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 55.41 399522 Ord. 2016-03 Floodplain Publication

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 87.07 399523 Ord. 2016-04 Opt Out Publication

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 641. 12 402758 Commerce Circle& Pioneer Trail Reconstruction

Total SUN PRESS& NEWSPAPERS 783. 60

Paid Chk# 026896''
1

9/20/ 2016

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 21. 05 16-09/ 4 Kris

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 21. 05 16-09/ 4 Justin

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 21. 64 16-09/ 4 Jeremy

Total T- MOBILE 63.74

Paid Chk# 026897 9/20/2016 TOLL

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 330.00 70003577 Oxygen& Acetylene Lease 5 Years

Total TOLL 330.00

Paid Chk# 026898 9/20/ 2016 TRACTOR SUPPLY CREDIT PLAN

G 604-20200 Accounts Payable 16. 97 16- 08/ 30 Culvret Repairs

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 35.96 16-08/ 30 Marking Paint

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 14.99 16- 08/30 WAM Oil

G 604- 20200 Accounts Payable 429.53 16-08/30 2" Trash Pump, hoses& fittings

Total TRACTOR SUPPLY CREDIT PLAN 497.45

Paid Chk# 026899 9/ 20/2016 WARRIOR SPECIALTY CONTRACTING

G 604-20200 Accounts Payable 2,970.00 090816-Ursula Culvert Repair Ursula St

otal WARRIOR SPECIALTY CONTRACTING      $ 2, 970.00

Paid Chk# 026900 9%20%2016 WESTSIDE TIRE

G 100-20200 Accounts Payable 245.04 773876 1 Ton Tires

Total WESTSIDE TIRE 245.04

10100 Bank West     $ 98, 630.95

5-



CITY OF GREENFIELD 09/ 14/ 16 12: 59 PM

Page 4

0
Check Detail Register©

September 2016

Check Amt Invoice Comment
SO

Fund Summary
10100 Bank West

100 General Fund 92,372.38
601 Industrial Park Water 161. 85

603 Industrial Park Sewer 45.43
604 Stormwater Management 3,463.27
820 Developer Escrows- 2014 to Curr 2, 588. 02

98, 630.95

6-



GREENFIELD CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

September 6, 2016

The City Council of the City of Greenfield, Hennepin County, Minnesota, met in workshop session on
Tuesday, September 6, 2016, at 5:30 p.m. in the council chambers at 6390 Town Hall Drive.

1.  Call meeting to order
Mayor Johnson called the meeting to order at 5: 30 p.m.

2.  Roll call

Members present:  Mayor Brad Johnson, Councilors Tom Cook, Mike tticltson, Mike Hoekstra, and
Mark Holten

Staff Present: City Administrator Bonnie Ritter, Assistant to the'City Administrator Margaret Webb, and
Public Works Supervisor Jeremy Ketcher

3.  Discussion on the proposed 2017 preliminary budeet

Staff presented the amended preliminary budget with changes thatwere identified at the August 16th
workshop.

Ketcher reviewed his street improvement/rhaiintenance program and how the streets were rated to
come up with their priority. Holten does notagree with showing $5s;000;in the 2017 budget coming
from the General Capital Improvement Fund to offset the increase in the paved streets (overlays)
expenditures. He stated he believes this fund should be for improvements, not routine maintenance.

Johnson reviewed the proposed General Capital Improvement budget and the general consensus was
to use these funds for the Pioneer Trail improvement that won't be covered by the MSAH and CAM
funds, the Comp Plan update, and the.deck-over trailerfor Public Works. Purchase of a replacement for
the one-ton truck would also come from that fund and Ketcher will bring back the specifics for approval
at a future Council meeting.

The 2017 preliminary budget will be considered at the Council meeting with the proposed increase of
5. 736%. Cook challenged Staff to get this increase down to the 4 to 4 %z% range for the final budet.

4. Adiourn

MOTION by Holten, seconded by Hoekstra to adjourn at 6:59 p.m. All voted in favor. Motion carried.

Mayor Brad Johnson

Attest: Bonnie Ritter, City Administrator

7-



CITY OF GREENFIELD

CITY COUNCIL MINUTES

September 6, 2016

The City Council of the City of Greenfield, Minnesota, met in regular session on Tuesday, September 6,
2016, at 7: 00 p.m. in the council chambers at 6390 Town Hall Drive.

1.  Call Meeting_to Order
Mayor Johnson called the meeting to order at 7: 04 p.m.

2.  Pledge of Allegiance

3.  Roll Call

Members present:  Mayor Brad Johnson; Councilors Tom Cook, Mike Erickson, Mite Hoekstra, and

Mark Holten

Staff present:  City Administrator Bonnie Ritter, Assistant to City Administrator Margaret Webb, Public
Works Supervisor Jeremy Ketcher, and City Engineer Ron Wagner,

4.  Approve agenda

MOTION by Holten, seconded by Hoekstra to approve the agenda as amended by adding Item 7C,
Water Tower Lease. All voted in favor. Motion carried.

5.  Public Comment/Response to Public Comment

Carol Beasecker, 6255 North.Shore Drive, asked about having a-Greenfield Days instead of Arbor Day
and Night to Unite. Johnsen stated that once there is' a group to organize a Greenfield Day, this will be
considered.  Beasecker stated that this summer North Shore Drive has been hit by storms and there is
no place to store debris. He asked if the City has considered a program where the gravel pit could be
open or have an agreement with surrounding cities for storm debris, instead of it being thrown in
ditches, etc.  She stated it is probably too late this year but asked the City to consider a compost sight
in the future.

6.  Consent a oenda

MOTION by Cook, seconded by Erickson to approve the consent agenda. All voted in favor. Motion
carried.

A. Approve payment of claims in the amount of$ 61, 752.76

Check# 26849-26870

General Fund 49,444.67

Park Dedication 125.00

Industrial Park Water 3,988.70

Lake Sarah Sewer 847. 19

Industrial Park Sewer 4,056.34

Stormwater Management 390.00

Developer Escrow 2,900.86

B. Approve minutes of the August 16, 2016 Council workshop

C. Approve minutes of the August 16, 2016 Council meeting

8-



City Council Minutes of September 6, 2016

7.   Discussion/Action Items

A.  2016 Reconstruction Protect

Wagner presented the bids that were received earlier in the day for the 2016 Street Reconstruction
Project for the improvement of Commerce Circle and a portion of Pioneer Trail. The City received
four bids, with the lowest being from Hardrives, Inc. of Rogers, MN. Their bid was $ 116,594.06 for

Commerce Circle, $85,244.26 for Pioneer Trail, for a total of$ 201, 838.32.

There was discussion regarding the cost to do just Pioneer Trail, and Wagner estimated that
because Pioneer Trail was bid using some of the reclaimed material-ft, m"Commerce Circle, an
estimated $ 17,500 would have to be added to the Pioneer Trail bid

Cook stated that if the specs called for bidding these streets°separately; the bid for Pioneer should
have included all costs if considered as a project on its own, separate from Commerce Circle, and
with the additional $ 17, 500 estimated, it appears that it,was not bid that way.

MOTION by Erickson, seconded by Hoekstra to adopt the following resolution. The following voted
in favor: Johnson, Erickson and Hoekstra. The followirag voted-against: Cook and Holten. Motion
carried.

RESOLUTION NO. 16-29: A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING $ IID FOR THE 2016 STREET

RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT

B. Adopt 2017 Preliminary.Budget

The preliminary 2017 budget res presented as discussed at", Council workshop.

The proposed Capital Improvement Fund budget was discussed and Johnson suggested using the
Capital Improvement Fund to finance the Commerce Circle Street Project, and the portion of the
Pioneer Trail project that isn' t covered by the MSAH and CAM funds. Hoekstra and Erickson
agreed.

MOTION by Holten, seconded by Erickson to adopt the following resolution. The following voted in
favor: Johnson, Erickson and Hoekstra. The following voted against: Cook and Holten. Motion
carried.;

RESOLUTION NO. 16-28: A RESOLUTION CERTIFYING PRELIMINARY PROPERTY TAX LEVY
COLLECTIBLE 2017, PROPOSED 2017 GENERAL FUND BUDGET, AND SETTING PUBLIC
MEETING DATE, TIME AND LOCATION

It was announced that the City Council will hold a public meeting and allow public input prior to the
final levy for taxes payable in 2017 and the 2017 final budget determination on Tuesday, December
6, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. in the council chambers at 6390 Town Hall drive, Greenfield, MN. The City
Council is scheduled to adopt the final property tax levy and final budget at this December 6, 2016
meeting.

9-



City Council Minutes of September 6, 2016

C.  City Water Tower Lease

Webb explained that Nextara Communications is interested in leasing the City's water tower for
internet communications. Before they apply for the conditional use permit they would like to know a
ball park figure on what the City will charge monthly for a lease. After discussion it was the general
consensus of the Council that Staff should convey to them that the monthly fee would be in the

1, 000/month range.

8. Information/Miscellaneous

A.  Comments/reports from Mayor

B.  Comments/ reports from Councilors

C.  Comments/reports from Administrator

D.  Correspondence: Sheriff's Activity Report

9.  Adiourn

MOTION by Erickson, seconded by Hoekstra to adjourn at 8:27 p.m. All voted in favor."Motion carried.

Mayor Brad Johnson

Attest: Bonnie Ritter, City Administrator

10-



City of Greenfield
City Council Meeting

September 20, 2016

TO: Honorable Mayor and Councilors

FROM:    City Administrator Bonnie Ritter

SUBJECT:       Reducing debt service tax levies for 2017

Mayor and Council

At the September 6, 2016 meeting the Council adopted the preliminary budget with specified debt levy
payments.  Hennepin County annually notifies the City with an amount to be levied per specific bond
obligation. The amounts that they specify are amounts included in the bond documents provided to
them with each bond issue, and often these amounts are not the same amounts that our financial
advisors calculate for the levy. This is because each individual bond has unique circumstances and
projections are being done each year that include all sources and uses, including levies.

Staff recommends that the Council adopt the resolution included for your consideration. This resolution
identifies the two bonds where the City is proposing to collect less than the scheduled levy as
determined by Hennepin County.

11-



CITY OF GREENFIELD

RESOLUTION NO. 16-30

RESOLUTION REDUCING DEBT SERVICE TAX LEVIES FOR 2017

WHEREAS, Hennepin County maintains a bond register with the City's scheduled bonded debt
levies for taxes payable in 2017, and requests a City resolution canceling the debt levy if the
City does not levy the scheduled amounts; and

WHEREAS, The City has determined that specific debt levies may be partially reduced due to
the accumulation and projection of other revenues sources, including previously collected tax

levies, previously collected and future projected special assessments, and utility fund
contributions,

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Greenfield,
Minnesota, that the following reduction of debt service levy be made for taxes payable in 2017:

Scheduled Proposed Reduction to

Levy Levy Levy

2012A G.O.Capital Impr. Plan Refunding     $ 98,000 90,000 8,000

2015A G.O. Equipment Certificates 61, 600 58,250 3, 350

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Administrator-Clerk is hereby directed to transmit a
certified copy of this resolution to the County Auditor of Hennepin County, Minnesota.

Adopted by the City Council this 20th day of September, 2016.

Mayor Brad Johnson

Attest: Bonnie Ritter, City Administrator-Clerk

12-



City Council Staff Report
Pheasant Meadows Estates Final Plat

09/ 20/ 2016

Greenfield
LIVE• WORK- PLAY

CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT

TO:    City Council
FROM:       Brad Scheib, Consulting City Planner
DATE: September 14, 2016

PLANNING CASE NO.    016-003

SUBJECT:    Final Plat— Pheasant Meadows Estate

APPLICANT: J. E. P. Development, LLC

LOCATION: 7745 Greenfield Road ( PID# 22- 119- 24-41-0001)

MEETING DATE:  September 20, 2016

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:       Rural Residential

ZONING:     RR— Rural Residential

ATTACHMENTS:

A.  Draft Resolution for Council Consideration

B.  Final Plat

C.  Construction Plan Set, dated August 26, 2016
D.  Demolition Plan, dated September 14, 2016
E.  Additional Narrative, dated September 9, 2016

F.   Draft Development Agreement

G.  Final Plat City Engineering Review by Hakanson Anderson, dated September 13, 2016
H.  Copy of Resolution # 16-26, approving the preliminary plat of Pheasant Meadows

Estates with conditions.

I.   Hennepin County Human Services and Public Health Department Septic Site Review,
dated August 5, 2016

J.   Pioneer-Sarah Creek Watershed Management Commission Wetland and Hydrology
Review, dated July 20, 2016

SUMMARY OF REQUEST

The applicant, Shawn Peterson of J. E. P. Development LLC, is requesting final plat approval to
subdivide 7745 Greenfield Road into 16 lots of varying sizes from 2. 6 acres to 9.9 acres.  The

80.1 acre parcel is generally located at the intersection of Greenfield Road and 78`
h

Lane North.

The project received preliminary plat approval from the City Council on August 3, 2016.

13-



City Council Staff Report
Pheasant Meadows Estates Final Plat

09/ 20/ 2016

120-DAY PROCESS

The final plat application was received by the city, reviewed and deemed complete on June
14th, 

2016. Per Minnesota Statute 426.358 Subdivision 3b, the City has 120 days to take action
on the request for preliminary plat approval.

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

The final plat is in substantial conformance with the preliminary plat approved by Resolution
16- 26. Minor modifications have been made to the areas of the conservation easements

around the wetlands on the site, with no material effect on the application. These adjustments
are acceptable as shown on the final plat.

CONFORMANCE WITH CONDITIONS OF THE APPROVED PRELIMINARY PLAT
Ten conditions were included in the approval of the preliminary plat application.  These

conditions are noted below, followed by a summary of the applicant' s progress on addressing
the conditions:

1.  All Individual Sewage Treatment Systems ( ISTS) constructed on greater than 12% slopes
and trench systems constructed on greater than 18% slopes shall be treated as other

systems and shall be subject to review and approval by the Wastewater Commission.

This condition will apply when individual lots are developed. For now, it should remain as
a condition of the final plat.

2.   Park dedication shall be paid in cash for the fifteen ( 15) new lots as per the City of
Greenfield' s current fee structure.

At the time of Final Plat recording the applicant will pay a park dedication fee of
52,500, which is $ 3,500 per lot, in accordance with the City's Fee Schedule. This figure

will be reflected in the Development Agreement.

3.  The applicant shall enter into a development agreement with the City. The agreement
shall be as approved by the City Attorney and City Council and shall include, but not be
limited to, financial guarantee for the installation of " Eastman Lane" and compliance
with conditions of approval.

In compliance with the Street Naming Map on record at City Hall, all references to
Eastman Lane" will be updated to " Ingram Street" so to have consistent street-naming

throughout the City.

The City's model Development Agreement prepared by the City Attorney was provided to
the applicant for completion.  The applicant submitted the Development Agreement
which was subsequently reviewed by planning and engineering staff. The Agreement has
been forward and is under review of the City Attorney and will be finalized before

14-



City Council Staff Report
Pheasant Meadows Estates Final Plat

09/ 20/ 2016

recording of the final plat.

4.   Right-of-way for Greenfield Road shall be properly dedicated to the City of Greenfield.

The applicant has shown on the Final Plat the current easement over Greenfield Road

will become public right-of-way.

5.  The Hennepin County Environmental Health Department shall approve the location of

the septic sites for the subdivision before the final plat may be submitted.

Approval for the general location of septic sites was given by Hennepin County Human
Services and Public Health Department, as indicated by their letter, dated August 5,
2016. Final siting of septic sites will occur at time of building permit.

6.   Prior to the issuance of building permits for individual lots, site and grading plans shall
be administratively reviewed relative to locating of private well and septic sites and
stormwater management standards.

This condition will apply when individual lots are developed. For now, it should remain as
a condition of the final plat.

7.  The applicant shall submit, as part of the Final Plat application submission, updated

drawings for the Streets Plan, Grading and Drainage Plan, and SWPPP to reflect the

realignment of " Eastman Road" as proposed in the Preliminary Plat drawing dated July
27, 2016.

As noted in 3. above, all references to " Eastman Road" will be changed to " Ingram

Street" to reflect the City' s street naming map.

The applicant submitted an updated set of Construction Plans which included the Street
Plan and SWPPP. Grading and Drainage were combined into the SWPPP. This updated
set of Construction Plans show the alignment of the new road as proposed in the
approved Preliminary Plat drawing dated July 27, 2016.

8.  The existing structures on the property at 7745 Greenfield Road which are proposed to
remain on the proposed parcels of Block 1, Lot 1 and Block 2, Lot 1, shall meet all

applicable setback, screening, and design standards for new principal and accessory
structures set forth in Chapter 152: Zoning, of the City Code; all other structures which
are non- compliant shall be removed.

The applicant submitted a demolition plan, dated September 14, 2016, showing which
existing buildings will be removed and which buildings will remain. The existing buildings
on the new lots will be as follows:

15-



City Council Staff Report
Pheasant Meadows Estates Final Plat

09/ 20/ 2016

Block 1, Lot 1 Block 2, Lot 1
Barn House

Silo Pole Shed

Groinery( Removed)      Shed( Removed)

The existing buildings which remain on the site shall be required to meet all applicable
setback, screening, and building standards for new principal and accessory structures.
This should remain a condition for the Final Plat.

9.  The applicant shall meet the recommendations as written by the Pioneer-Sarah
Watershed Management Commission in their letter dated July 20, 2016, as presented
to the City Council on August 3, 2016

The items are listed below:

a.  To meet Commission abstraction standards, buffer and preservation easement

documentation must be provided with preliminary approvals from the City and
Commission.

The applicant is in the process of establishing a homeowners association for the
ownership,  maintenance,  and management of the conservation easements
indicated on the plan set.  The finalization of these documents,  including
establishment of bylaws for the HOA, will be required before the recording of the
final plat. As such, it should remain a condition of approval.

b.  Erosion controls must meet the following: " Initial grading will consist of road
and pond construction:

i.   Permanent ponds must be utilized as temporary sediments ponds until
permanent vegetation is established in the watershed leading to it.

The applicant has submitted an updated Stormwater Pollution Prevention
Plan ( SWPPP) as part of the Construction Plans Set dated August 26,

2016. Within this documentation, the temporary sediment conditions are
met.

ii.  Temporary riser outlets to the sediments ponds must be provided.

As indicated in item 16.d.b of the Engineering Review by Hakanson
Anderson, dated September 13, 2016, the applicant has provided a detail
of the temporary riser outlets, but this element still needs to be called out

in the plans. As such, it shall remain a condition of approval for the Final
Plat.

16-



City Council Staff Report
Pheasant Meadows Estates Final Plat

09/ 20/ 2016

iii.  Temporary riser outlet details are necessary on the site plan initial rough
grading. This must be noted in the SWPPP construction sequencing.

As noted above, the applicant provided the details of the temporary riser
outlets within their SWPPP plans dated August 26, 2016.

iv.  Temporary and permanent vegetation must be established on all
cropland areas. If the existing crop ( rye grass) is to be permanent, this
must be noted on the plans."

Within Sheet 6 of the Construction Plan set, dated August 26, 2016, the
applicant indicated:  " With the exception of the ponding areas,  all

disturbed areas shall be restored with MnDOT 25-141 Seed Mix, Type 1
Mulch (Disc Anchored)& 22-5-10 Type 3 Fertilizer."

Because the construction of the improvements of this subdivision will
leave some of the site undisturbed ( i.e. individual lots), the applicant still

needs to indicate the temporary and permanent vegetation for the
cropland areas.

c.   Long term pond operation and maintenance must be determined per the
following:

i.   " Pond Operation and Maintenance. If the City of Greenfield does not
agree to the long term operation and maintenance of the stormwater
ponds, an acceptable operation and maintenance agreement between
the City of Greenfield and the property owner of the pond must be
developed and recorded on the property.  A copy of the recorded
documents must be provided to the Commission."

The City of Greenfield shall take over the operation and maintenance of
the stormwater ponds once construction has been completed, inspected,
and approved to all applicable City and related standards.   This

arrangement is reflected within the Development Agreement.

d.  The Center pond must be designed to meet a mean average depth of 4.0 feet.

As indicated in item 16.a of the Engineering Review by Hakanson Anderson,
dated September 13, 2016, the applicant has yet to provide this design. It shall
remain a condition of Final Plat approval.

17-



City Council Staff Report
Pheasant Meadows Estates Final Plat

09/ 20/ 2016

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approval of the final plat of Pheasant Meadows Estates with the following
conditions:

1.  Compliance with the conditions outlined in the preliminary plat approval Resolution
16-26.

2.  Compliance with the conditions outlined in the review memo written by Consulting City
Engineer, Hakanson Anderson, dated September 13, 2016, which is attached to this
report.

3.   In all documents, all references to " Eastman Road" shall be changed to read " Ingram

Street" in compliance with the City' s Street Naming Map.

4.  All fees and financial obligations shall be received by the City prior to the releasing of
the final plat for recording.

5.   Development Agreement shall be finalized and shall be approved by the City Attorney
and signed by all applicable parties prior to. the City releasing the final plat for
recording.

6.  Documentation regarding the Home Owner' s Association, and the creation, ownership,
and maintenance of the Conservation Easements shall be finalized and shall be

approved by the City Attorney and the Pioneer- Sarah Creek Watershed Management
Commission prior to the City releasing the final plat for recording.

7.   Unless the City Council approves a time extension, the final plat shall be recorded
within one year of Council approval of the final plat.

In recommending Staff approval, if all the above conditions are met, the following findings of
fact are offered.

1.  The criteria for Final Plats included in City Code Section 151.07 are met.

2.  The proposed subdivision meets the standards of the R- R Rural Residential Zoning
District, as seen in City Code Section 152. 055 are met.

3.  The proposed subdivision complies with the City' s Comprehensive Plan and proposes
uses and density which are in compliance.

18-



a C' Gl vu-   IR

CITY OF GREENFIELD

RESOLUTION NO. 16-31

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FINAL PLATTING OF THE PHEASANT MEADOWS
ESTATES SUBDIVISION

WHEREAS, the applicant, Shawn Peterson ( representing J. E. P. Development, LLC), has

requested final platapproval for the property at 7745 Greenfield Road Greenfield,
Minnesota which is legally described as the East Half of the Southeast Quarter of Section
22, Township 119, Range 24, Hennepin County, Minnesota; and,

WHEREAS, the requested final plat is to allow for the platting of sixteen ( 16) single family
residential lots varying in size from 2.6 acres to 9.9 acres on 80. 1 total acres; and,

WHEREAS,; the final plat is in substantial conformance with the preliminary plat which was
approved by the Cit Council b Resolution # 16- 26 on August 3 2016.Y Y 9

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the Greenfield, the City does
hereby approve the final plat for Pheasant Meadows Estates with the following conditions:

1.  Compliance with the conditions outlined in the preliminary plat approval Resolution
16-26.

2.  Compliance with the conditions outlined in the review memo written by Consulting
City Engineer, Hakanson Anderson, dated September 13, 2016.

3.  In all documents, all references to "Eastman Road" shall be changed to read " Ingram
Street" in compliance with the City's Street Naming Map.

4.  All fees and financial obligations shall be received by the City prior to the releasing of
the final lat for recording.9

5.  Developmentp t Agreement shall be finalized and shall be approved b the CitpP Y Y

Attorney and signed by all applicable parties prior to the City releasing of the final plat
for recording.

6.  Documentation regarding the Home Owner's Association, and the creation,
ownership, and maintenance of the Conservation Easements shall be finalized and

shall be approved by the City Attorney and the Pioneer-Sarah Creek Watershed
Management Commission prior to the City releasing the final plat for recording.

7.  The applicant shall provide the plat and all required information to the City within
ninety (90) days after the date of the City Council approval, otherwise the approval of
the final plat shall be considered void. An extension to the ninety( 90) day limit may
be granted at the discretion of the City Council in response to a written request from
the applicant. The applicant shall record the final plat with the County Recorder within
30 days after the date the plat is signed by the City Administrator-Clerk and the
Mayor.

19-



Adopted by the Greenfield City Council on September 20, 2016.

Mayor Brad Johnson

Attest:  Bonnie Ritter, City Administrator-Clerk

20-



P4C,C11vy-)er, 4-

Hill

J

Ya

E 3 t itss

ja fl  !  t " sa. i i
i„      tl II Rai   

xg`
i c M      ; 

t

B

s€83.    

a

fL4?

LdiLU

Q
R 9A

p<< 

i .

A"

Ry
Y 

I3
q aI4J I

13a a iz

Lu

F)  I.; v
s

F sR

i#_ _-----

y

Lmu I

Y1 i
8 Ii}

6

all!

I

g2Ec      ---------

QlQ

mpg I j}
pSI`ii illr

i

Pr sq x a Ewa4s s
3R

a ,

ig
r. w.. wr<s

8    _
a dei

I   '

IL

xx f1'

I a i w    --------------------     —    _ I-
fj

ZV

21-



CAC'J-) t14-

QQQ w
aaa

W¢ W WWW

N
z

LLI

U W

2 NRY¢¢ QQ

q
WR pph Qa¢

OOFO FO--
O

VI h1n00

2 n
Nha n bn Wm F

h

w
o W

n z
zQ IN w con z
UQ  ^      

UW

O W0 w OJ
CL I

GC
z z3 ww

Qmof

O J

N W
O

C d

Q) v
Q

Q

N

L-Li Y

Q

I    N 3

W a

M 3

is I' ll
N g

u

CL

ro

LOQ       
Q

Co

III
c

e

22-



l_  4               R R 8

g
ce Iwi N e

a

B gn N Q

IT

1

Y

So—01 COn,       of 

5p3--    F—

rr..       1
1

w OJ parr      '

W
Wiwi W aLL

1/  11 1
roi° x_      88 p wo

g

T_y_

i a

e

88
cm,   a

If
F

1y
a of

IN
l   ——

o-

J    \    

sr1«      ` ' 
0

4     
Pull M

of8.6-: io01

gero
t

kk

so;soo

1 ' 

Wp
r

1 =

x

tt

55

Z- Z.  1
HM

as_       

23-



N
x-

z

E

flow/

Mg

P°

6

a x

y

ocoi

k NX

lu

Rom

wim

va

u8zt Qe ao. W

d

L 2.
061 Ra&

s

Zoo:

i m uclof 3=

Cli

Ewa

arb'n I    " I
caro.

I li

S

5   US'       I

i i +  1 1•

uoi

Lill

i
3 HE

i

24-



eW W   ` ao
w W

ie-
WWW   

h
s'

aW pk oa W

z

i8      NSW No m

ayWW  ,    °      °  _      B•

tiQ_ 
u W

JWiUx ¢ 
L 4 n

3N
tllNUM

Im
p Fd

h  - W aLL
u 0 3Wzz

3 w
uzn

H a K
ego MW Q c9

W

i W U m        _    

a 8      a`
x ff

o
a      

6_      ep " na     3

2 "   o  '^ xa < $ h g J
as° 

W oo $     
W'

a     ion u'  
pmei '°a   ti

o& oibm

8a
z Wai  '

6
W- -       o   - HK    °  " s    =

am Y„ Npe zo d
Wma

9
WQe W H;             ba E-- ah<

W B im dWhrW       _ Wu`oza

o <     `"  r m\, n  < b    W
W    

W„
ox 

bz hry.,., 1 "   W<`  ' mw
pq<

M < a °

gi5  

g

j 8

o
5A r 9 Fm   . z

5„

25-



m

Q N
N

0D
ZZ

Gre2nf8IU  ----------------------------

W O
J

e.      ---       --    ---      

ON 4b>      
2 3

I
al

III    ' C—tC—HHI IFIL. 
IF. d     

Fy
Oz

w

Z z IX
co

SIA
Qds $  a

I

I. pyPy

II' d

I       \
r a

TL-E1lie
s

d , t

i 8.

gR  

i

s
I   

Q cc)

ICY Fllif
1 4T s

Q
I

JI-  gic II_.   I I        

IIn
v1j,  

iygg

26-



I I

i

P:

n'r.l;'

00. i4 I
I III IIS

I- 1111   f-
ll l1- Ii= l llJ 1- 11- Ifi-    -- II II 1 I I I. 11 til- VI-- _ I-   t y

y

D V)

d
Q

V) Z

2 0 Kd,
Q 1! 1 W

a

z
f: 3.

iE
a S 3 w

aFt_  - -   4ZyIX

111 14

F

TH

hol
ITl

15 1

IIT

E
III

i

HIII
i IIIIy

J

27-



I p q N

e     --'- 

J a
w

T

a_  rn

a z

IFcr

z n
o

rl'-

lV A E y at
W

LII r
aF W

0Q w w
v III    ,.  /      I

a    M z
uiLU

ml
j ,-II I x

C,       r     / a
w

FluA

J Y

VIII
7 hL_ J

cA

V
411

big

sd

28-



4  

W
2
y

jig 0
m

er

o 6-9Ep

i FR6I w
3 K V{   "& dib--...^..     k@ F( ib'       F

d
J 6J

mLLJ
F-  

R
88 F-       Q

An'? v- eax: aRae

aQE
C

w

a_       to z

3NE
p

Ir

F oJ
a W
3i

CD.-
YF J e        Z= ItJ 

Mf

Q
W

a

LL m i
tl} ^

eta:;.' s_ tl x̀rq e   !
wig

t•• 99az9ea e

E
A5R5,    

YY U

a
n

a
S

as

6

n

Y

K

s

a

g

29-



q 

Cl)

trz

k poUa. 1
Lu W
Q` o

L
2§zte

Q 0 Ir
LLJ

EW

2/ s

a

R 6!

f
mz!

leg
i

wZ E,

N
F-

LU

Lk\      9  !    k

3n-



Demol1 tlon Plan

17
0

IL,      F
I

1
10-\       

010.67       

I I

T8.95l
e

X1008. 76
I

i I I I      \       I I 0 100 200

I i I
I  `

I
Feet

1008
Tile Outlet I I I r

C
6"

L  1006--         \ //   
Inv.-   9.

48104
T.  roinoge &     

Utility Easement

q
1

X10'•3.59
X1002.91

1004

1006—

100 /   
I

o1010005

12'  
woos-s

111U8
1022 /

mac%    
1 EMB E xt 101026 GRA

1026 J.22.691. 3      -'    02816 Tile
1030.       I     !     

I Inv.= 1019. 56

11
165. 9 I J

1032.0[Xv .,     e 1.....     Q2. 07

C Graine
J

SNF

10

ea _ 
I

n      •.•   •    _ _.•_-.     
I

Benchmark:    
t

To of wellREMOVE E1j/ST/NG ,.$     9t 1) I
Elevation= 1037,78

10 SHED_    
TING I I

I     ( N.G. V.D.  1929)    L I I
I•      

Gas       / V.  1I 0212   
j 0126. 16 CI Meter   /    :•  EC dP° I' fGylSh

y ,/ i
I•   

X1034. 74    
034.  louse i/ onC,,.,,((179.

x/

FF= 1:     18--/ 
nl=X"   .94-.../ I

I-_..._...
134- J:

50

1o10tap'!-0"
ooa'   \ \\\      I• 

t 1     / j 1° , Oti

X103
p   16

oo
o   \ \\   \I       \    \  I ro 10

I I
I

J   :/' X15" CMP

Inv==101,212- 

1014 I

lrrseoted Wet/on  -

X1 15.2 6`   11018.  I

roino e '&       ;   •-      I   `-
Inv.= 1011.29

Lin Inti[    Eoseme II0[8.57

ILi

line of the E 1/ 2 rhe SE 4
4 of Sec. 22,  T.  119,   •   4 a  101       /  

X70 9.62 1I p

0 J

L

L',,     
T

I I I   I  II11 III J I ti

denotes iron monument found Requested By. Revised:

Shawn Petersondenotes 1/ 2 inch by 14 inch
WWW'° ttaassoaates.co,n

iron pipe set and marked by 9 west Division street

O Buffalo, MN 55313License# 40062 Date: Drawn By.- Scale:      Checked By. TT      (763)682-4727 Project No.

fSSOCIATES
Fax.( 763)682-3522

9- 14- 16 T.J.B.  1  - 100 P.E.O.
Engineers& Land Surveyors, Inc. 15- 0254



SSOCIATFs

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.

DATE:  September 9, 2016
CLIENT:  Shawn Peterson

OTTO PROJECT NO. 15- 0254

ADDITIONAL NARRATIVE
FOR

PHEASANT MEADOWS ESTATES
GREENFIELD, MINNESOTA

Conservation easement areas were chosen in areas that were wooded or unfarmed, while
allowing reasonable space for home, yard, and septic sites.

The area of the public right of way of Greenfield Road and Ingram Avenue is proposed to be
6. 30 acres.

This project is proposed to be constructed as one phase and begin in the Fall of 2016 with
completion in late Summer 2017.

9 West Division Street, Buffalo, MN 55313 •  763-682-4727 • Fax 763-682-3522 •  www.ottoassociates. com

32-



Pr4+ c4c[,iifv-,--e,v-1+

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is made this day of September, 2016, by and between the
CITY OF GREENFIELD,  a Minnesota municipal corporation  ( the  " City")  and J. E.P.

Developments, LLC, a Minnesota limited liability company( the " Developer").

Recitals

A.       The Developer is the fee owner of certain real estate located in Hennepin County,
Minnesota, legally described as:

The East Half of the Southeast Quarter of Section 22, Township 119, Range 24
hereinafter referred to as the " Property").

B.       The Developer has received approval from the City Council on August 3, 2016 by
Resolution # 16- 26 of a preliminary plat to plat the Property into Pheasant Meadows Estates
consisting of 16 new lots.

D.       The Developer has made application requesting approval of a Final Plat for
Pheasant Meadows Estates and shall plat the Property consistent with the preliminary plat and
final plat of Pheasant Meadows Estates approved by the City Council in Resolution No.
on 2016,  subject to the conditions and requirements contained in the

authorizing resolution, the Greenfield City Code and state statutes.

E.       As a prerequisite to the approval of the Final Plat application, the City Council
requires the Developer to agree to the construction of certain improvements pursuant to this
Agreement for the orderly development of the Property.

F.       The Developer is financially responsible for the construction and installation costs
of those certain public improvements described in this Agreement, as required by the City Code
and by City resolution, referred to as the " Improvements."

Agreement

In consideration of each party' s promises as set forth in this Agreement, it is mutually
agreed as follows:

ARTICLE ONE

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

1. 01. City Representations and Warranties.  The City makes the following representations as the
basis for the undertakings on its part contained herein:

A.       The City is a municipal corporation under the laws of Minnesota.

33-



B.       The City has the right, power and authority to execute, deliver and perform its
obligations under this Agreement.   The City assures the Developer that the individuals who
execute this Agreement on behalf of the City are duly authorized to sign the same on behalf of
the City and to bind the City thereto.

1. 02.  Developer Representations and Warranties.    The Developer makes the following
representations as the basis for the undertakings on its part contained herein:

A.       The Developer is a limited liability company.

B.       The Developer has the right, power and authority to execute, deliver and perform
its obligations under this Agreement.  The Developer assures the City that the individuals who
execute this Agreement on behalf of the Developer are duly authorized to sign on behalf of the
Developer and to bind the Developer thereto.

C.       The Developer is not in default under any lease, contract, or agreement to which it
is a party or by which it is bound, which would affect its performance under this Agreement.
The Developer is not a party to or bound by any mortgage, lien, lease, agreement, instrument,
order,  judgment,  or decree,  which would prohibit the execution or performance of this

Agreement by the Developer or prohibit any of the transactions provided for in this Agreement.

D.       The Developer has complied with and will continue to comply with all applicable
federal, state and local statutes, laws, ordinances and regulations including, without limitation,
any permits,  licenses and applicable zoning,  environmental,  or other laws,  ordinances,  or

regulations affecting the Property or the Improvements.   The Developer is not aware of any
pending or threatened claim of any such violation.   Without limitation of the foregoing, the
Developer expressly acknowledges and agrees that it has and shall at all times comply with each
and every applicable provision of the City' s subdivision, zoning, and other related municipal
code regulations.

E.       There is no suit, action, arbitration or legal, administrative or other proceeding or
governmental investigation pending or threatened against or affecting the Developer or the
Property.  The Developer is not in default with respect to any order, writ, injunction or decree of
any federal, state, local or foreign court, department, agency or instrumentality.

F.       None of the representations and warranties made by the Developer or made in any
exhibit hereto or memorandum or writing furnished or to be furnished by the Developer or on its
behalf contains or will contain any untrue statement of material fact or omits any material fact,
the omission ofwhich would be misleading.

G.       The Developer has sufficient funds or has obtained a commitment for financing in
an amount adequate to finance construction of the Improvements.

34-



1. 03 ,  Incorporation of Recitals and Exhibits.   The Recitals set forth in the preamble to this
Agreement and the Exhibits attached to this Agreement are incorporated into this Agreement as if
fully set forth herein.

ARTICLE TWO

CONSTRUCTION OF IMPROVEMENTS

2. 01. Agreement to Construct Improvements.  The Developer agrees to the construction of the

Improvements required by City ordinance and City resolution for development of the Property.
The Improvements are more fully described in the plans set forth in attached Exhibit A which are
incorporated into this Agreement ( the " Plans").   The Plans consist of construction of Ingram
Street as described in the development and related grading, storm sewer and sediment and

erosion control. A final copy of the Plans must be filed with the City for its review and approval
prior to commencement of construction of the Improvements.  All labor and work performed by
the Developer in connection with construction of the Improvements must be done and performed
in the best and most worker-like manner and in strict conformance with the Plans. Any deviation
from the Plans must be approved in writing by the City.  Construction of the Improvements shall
be completed no later than one year from the issuance of the grading permit required herein.
Prior to initiating construction of the Improvements, the Developer shall hold a pre-construction
meeting with the City to review and resolve any issues involving the construction of the
Improvements.

2. 02. Obtaining_Approvals and Permits.  The Developer shall obtain in a timely manner and pay
for all permits,  licenses,  and approvals required in connection with construction of the

Improvements, and all easements and licenses necessary for access to the Property and construction
of the Improvements.   The Developer shall meet in a timely manner the requirements of all
applicable local, state, and federal laws and regulations which must be met before the Improvements
may be lawfully constructed and shall be responsible for securing all necessary approvals and
permits from all appropriate federal,  state,  regional and local jurisdictions prior to the
commencement of site grading or construction of utilities and buildings.  Specifically, prior to
obtaining any building permits or grading permits as required under this Agreement or otherwise,
the Developer shall complete the following requirements:

A.       Receive all necessary approvals of the Pioneer- Sarah Creek Watershed
Management Commission(" Watershed Commission").

B.       Provide the City with a Letter of Credit in the amount of$437, 215. 63 as a form
of financial guarantee, as described in Exhibit B, to guarantee the construction of
the Improvements.

C.       After the Developer has submitted all documents and paid all fees, the Developer
will record with Hennepin County this Agreement and Resolution No. and

will furnish a receipt with document numbers to the City within 30 days of
recording.

D.       Submit the required payment of park dedication of$52,000.00 to the City.

35-



E.       Submit the required payment of siren fees of$5,497.26 to the City.

F.       Participate in a preconstruction conference with the City Engineer and City staff.

2.03.   Designation of Improvements.  Improvements to be installed at Developer' s expense by
the Developer are hereinafter referred to as the " Improvements."  The construction, installation,

materials and equipment shall be in accordance with the plans and specifications approved by the
City.  All of the work shall be under and subject to the inspection and approval of the City and,
where appropriate, any other governmental agency having jurisdiction.   The Developer will

construct and install at the Developer' s expense the following Improvements according to the
Plans:

A. Grading
B. Storm Sewer

C. Street Construction

D. Sediment and Erosion Control

2. 04.   Grading and Erosion Control: The Developer shall perform all site grading including
building sites, common greenway and open spaces, storm water management, and private roads
and driveways, in accordance with the approved grading, drainage, and site plans as may be
required.  All development shall conform to the natural limitations presented by the topography
and soil of the subdivision in order to create the best potential for preventing soil erosion.  The

Developer shall submit an erosion control plan, detailing all erosion control measures to be
implemented during construction, said plan shall be approved by the City and any other agency
having jurisdiction, prior to the commencement of site grading or construction.

2. 05. Street Maintenance During Construction.  The Developer shall be responsible for public

street and private road maintenance, including curbs, boulevards, sod and street sweeping until
the project is complete.   All roadways shall be maintained free of debris and soil until the
construction is completed.   The City may inspect the site on a periodic basis and determine
whether it is necessary to take additional measures to clean dirt and debris from public roadways.
After 24 hours verbal notice to the Developer, as listed in this Agreement, if not already cleaned,
the City will complete or contract to complete the cleanup at the Developer' s expense.  Warning
signs shall be placed by the Developer when hazards develop in roadways to prevent the public
from traveling on same and directing attention to detours.  If and when the roadway becomes
impassible, such roads shall be barricaded and closed.  The Developer shall be responsible for
any damage to the roads incurred during construction.   The roads shall be repaired by the
Developer to City standards.

2.06. Erosion Control: The Developer shall inspect and, if necessary, clean all catch basins,
sumps, and ponding areas of erosion/siltation and restore to the original condition at the end of

construction within the development.  All silt fence and other erosion control measures should be
removed following the establishment of turf,  or as required by Watershed Management
Commission.   The Developer shall survey and dedicate the storm water infiltration area as

36-



required by the City.  The Developer shall be responsible for storm sewer cleaning and holding
pond dredging, as reasonably required by the City prior to completion of the development.

2.07. Staking, Surveying, and Inspections.  The Developer must provide for all staking, surveying
and inspections for the Improvements in order to ensure that the completed Improvements conform
to the Plans. The City will provide for general inspection by the City Engineer or the Public Works
Supervisor on a basis that it reasonably determines is necessary and appropriate at the Developer' s
expense.  The Developer must notify the City in advance of all tests to be performed regarding the
Improvements.  The Developer must provide the City with a survey of the Property from a licensed
land surveyor prior to any building permits being issued.

2.08. Easements.  At any time determined necessary by the City, the Developer shall dedicate to
the City, at no cost, any temporary easements as may be necessary.  All such easements required
by the City shall be provided on City easement documents, containing such terms and conditions,
as the City shall determine. Ifpossible, all permanent easements necessary shall be shown on the
final plat and be granted to the City upon recordation of said plat.  After recordation of said plat,
additional easements necessitated by changes to utility or grading design shall be provided on an
amended final plat and be granted to the City upon recordation of said plat.

2. 09. Time for Developer' s Performance: General Provision.  The Developer agrees that it will
commence work on the Improvements no later than 180 days of the date of this Agreement and

shall complete the Improvements no later than one year from when the grading permit is issued.
In the event of a " phased" construction schedule, each phase shall be subject to its own timeline
based upon the date of issuance of the building permit.  The City may at its discretion extend the
timeline specified in this Section upon receipt of written notice from the Developer of the
existence of causes which will delay the completion of the Improvements if such causes are ones
over which the Developer has no control and which could not have been reasonably foreseen by
the Developer.  If an extension of the date of completion of the Improvements is granted by the
City, the Developer must continue the financial guarantee required by this Agreement to cover
the work during the extension of time.

2. 10. Additional Work or Materials.   Construction of the Improvements shall be done by the
Developer or Developer' s designee.  The Improvements shall be constructed at no expense to the
City.  The Developer shall not do any work or furnish any materials for which reimbursement is
expected from the City, unless such work is first ordered and reimbursement is approved by the
City. Any work or materials which is done or furnished by the Developer without prior written
order is furnished at the Developer' s risk, cost and expense, and the Developer agrees that it will
make no claim for compensation for work or materials so done or furnished.

2. 11. Financial Guarantee.  Prior to commencement of construction of the Improvements, the

Developer agrees to furnish the City an irrevocable and renewable letter of credit from a bank in
the amount of 125 percent of the Developer' s and the City' s estimated costs for the
Improvements ( the " Financial Guarantee"), such estimates to be based on received bids or other
evidence satisfactory to the City in its sole discretion, as determined by the City Engineer.  The

estimated costs for the Developer for the Improvements are set forth in Exhibit B attached to this
Agreement.   Upon failure of Developer to perform, the City may declare the Developer to be in

37-



default under this Agreement and, upon failure of the Developer to cure the default within 30
days of written notice, may demand the Financial Guarantee be paid over to the City.  From the

proceeds of the Financial Guarantee, the City shall be reimbursed for reasonable attorneys' fees,
engineering fees or other technical, administrative or professional assistance, and the remainder
thereof shall be used by the City to complete the Improvements. The Developer shall be liable to
the City in the event that the Financial Guarantee is inadequate to reimburse the City for its costs
and pay for the completion of the Improvements.

The financial institution and form of Financial Guarantee shall be subject to the approval
of the City. The Financial Guarantee shall be automatically renewable until the City releases the
Developer from responsibility.  The Financial Guarantee shall secure compliance with the terms

of this Agreement and all obligations of the Developer under it. The City may draw down on the
Financial Guarantee without notice if the obligations of the Developer have not been completed
as required by this Agreement.  With City approval, the Financial Guarantee may be reduced
from time to time as financial obligations are paid and Developer-installed Improvements
completed to the City' s requirements.  Upon completion of the Improvements and passage of any
required inspections and final acceptance of the Improvements by the City pursuant to this
Agreement, absent any default of the Developer, the Financial Guarantee may be terminated.

In the event the City does not recover its costs for completing the Improvements under
the provisions of this paragraph, as an additional remedy, the City may, at its option, assess the
Property in the manner provided by Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 429, and Developer hereby
consents to the levy of such special assessments without notice or hearing and waives its rights to
appeal such assessments pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 429.081, provided the amount

levied, together with the funds deposited with the City under this paragraph, does not exceed the
expenses actually incurred by the City in the completion of the Improvements.  Further, the City
may, at its option, as an additional remedy, recover its costs for completing the Improvements, in
the manner provided by Minnesota Statutes, Section 415.01, 366.011 and 366.012, and the

Developer hereby consents to the levy of such assessments without notice or hearing and waives
its rights to appeal such assessments pursuant to such Minnesota Statutes, provided the amount
levied, together with the funds deposited with the City under Section—, does not exceed the

expenses actually incurred by the City pursuant to this Agreement.

This Section 2. 11 shall survive termination of this Agreement and shall be binding on the
Developer regardless of the enforceability of any other provision of this Agreement.

2. 12. Insurance.  The Developer shall furnish proof of liability insurance in an amount of at least
1, 500,000.00, acceptable to the City, covering any public liability or property damage by reason

of the operation of the Developer' s equipment or laborers in connection with the Improvements.

Developer agrees to keep the insurance in force at all times during construction of the
Improvements and until acceptance thereof by the City.  The insurance must name the City as an
additional insured and must provide that the insurer will give the City not less than 30 days
written notice prior to cancellation or termination of the insurance policy.

2. 13. Unsatisfactory Labor or Material.   In the event that the City rejects as defective or
unsuitable any material or labor supplied by the Developer regarding the Improvements, the

38-



rejected material must be removed and replaced with approved material and the rejected labor
must be done again to the specifications and approval of the City and at the sole cost and expense
of the Developer.

2. 14. Final Inspection/Acceptance.   Upon completion of the Improvements, representatives of
the City and the Developer will make a final inspection of the work.  Before final payment is

made to the contractor by the Developer, the City must be satisfied that all work is satisfactorily
completed in accordance with the Plans, and the Developer' s engineer shall submit a written
statement attesting to the same.  The City shall have no obligation to accept the Improvements if

they are not consistent with the Plans or not in compliance with all federal, state, local and City
ordinances and standards related thereto.  Final approval and acceptance of the Improvements

shall be by a resolution duly adopted by the City.

2. 15. Warranty on Property Work and Materials.  The Developer warrants all work required to be
performed by it under this Agreement regarding the Improvements against defective material and
faulty workmanship for a period of one year.after completion and acceptance by the City, except
that the warranty period for the drainage and erosion control portions of the Improvements shall
be for two years after completion and acceptance by the City.  In addition, all trees, grass, sod or
other landscaping installed in connection with the Improvements are warranted to be alive, of

good quality, and disease- free for a period of two years after completion and acceptance by the
City.  Any replacements of same shall be similarly warranted.  The Developer shall be solely
responsible for all costs of performing repair and replacement work required by the City and
shall perform such work within 30 days of receiving demand for such work from the City,
weather permitting.

2. 16. Records and Plans.  The Developer agrees to provide the City with copies of all bids and
change orders, and the names of all suppliers and subcontractors, and other similar information
relating to the Improvements to be constructed by the Developer.   Upon completion of the

Improvements, the Developer shall provide the City with a full set of" as built" record plans.
These must include two paper copies, and an electronic copy.

2. 17. Financial Guarantee.   Upon completion of the Improvements and prior to acceptance

thereof by the City, the Developer shall maintain with the City 10 percent of the original letter of
credit amount for a period of two years to serve as the financial guarantee to ensure adequate
repair or replacement of deficiencies ofpublic improvements.

2. 18. Lien Waivers.  As a condition precedent to the City' s final acceptance of the Improvements
pursuant to Section 2. 14 of this Agreement, the Developer shall deliver to the City final lien
releases or waivers by all contractors, subcontractors, materialmen, and other parties who have
supplied labor, materials or services for the construction of the Improvements, or who otherwise
might be entitled to claim a contractual,  statutory,  or constitutional lien against the

Improvements or the Property.

2. 19. Temporary Roads and Other Construction.  If construction of the Improvements results in the
construction of temporary roads or other ways, or other temporary improvements or modifications
to the Property or any other property, the Developer shall, as a condition precedent to the City' s

39-



final acceptance of the Improvements pursuant to Section 2. 14 of this Agreement, remove all such

temporary improvements and otherwise return such property to the condition it was in prior to
construction of the Improvements; provided that the City may in its sole discretion, waive or modify
the requirements ofthis Section by writing approved by the City Council and executed by the City.

2.20. Parking and Storage.  The Developer agrees to provide adequate parking and storage area for
workers, equipment, construction materials, or other items associated with the Improvements.

Existing public roadways or rights-of-way shall not be utilized for these purposes except as
allowed by the City.

2.21. Compliance with Existing Laws. The Developer warrants that all work performed pursuant

to this Agreement shall be in compliance with existing laws, ordinances, pertinent regulations,
standards, specifications of regulatory agencies and specifications of the City, and is subject to
approval of the City.

2.22. City' s Access.  The Developer hereby grants the City, its agents, employees, officials and
contractors a non-revocable license to enter the Property to perform all work and inspections
deemed appropriate by the City related to said development.

ARTICLE THREE

ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS

3. 01. Property Monumentation.  The Developer agrees to provide sufficient temporary property
monumentation, installed by or under the direction of a registered land surveyor, prior to and
during the course of the construction of the Improvements to ensure proper layout.  The
Developer further agrees to install all permanent monumentation prior to the City' s acceptance
of the Improvements and shall submit to the City written verification by a licensed land surveyor
that the required monuments have been installed on the Property.

3. 02. Payment of City Costs.   The Developer agrees to reimburse the City its actual costs
regarding preparing and administering this Agreement and all other documents, permits, and
applications related to construction of the Improvements.  In addition to and without limitation of

the foregoing, the costs to be reimbursed by the Developer to the City shall include, but not be
limited to, attorneys' fees, planning consultant fees, engineering fees, inspection fees, and the costs
and fees of other technical and professional assistance ( including but not limited to the cost of City
staff time) incurred or expended by the City on activities arising out of this Agreement, the
Improvements, and other undertakings related thereto.  The Developer shall, upon execution of this

Agreement, agree to apply any remaining escrow funds from prior land use applications, to payment
of the costs described in this Section 3. 02. If such costs exceed the amount remaining in escrow, the
Developer shall, upon demand by the City, pay such additional costs to the City within 10 days of
such demand. The amount by which remaining escrow exceeds the City' s actual costs, if any, shall
be returned to the Developer.

In the event the City does not recover its costs under the provisions of this paragraph, as
an additional remedy, the City may, at its option, assess the Property in the manner provided by
Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 429, and Developer hereby consents to the levy of such special

40-



assessments without notice or hearing and waives its rights to appeal such assessments pursuant
to Minnesota Statutes, Section 429.081, provided the amount levied, together with the funds

deposited with the City under this paragraph, does not exceed the expenses actually incurred by
the City.  Further, the City may, at its option, as an additional remedy, recover its costs in the
manner provided by Minnesota Statutes,  Section 415. 01,  366.011 and 366.012,  and the

Developer hereby consents to the levy of such assessments without notice or hearing and waives
its rights to appeal such assessments pursuant to such Minnesota Statutes, provided the amount

levied, together with the funds deposited with the City under Sectiondoes not exceed the
costs actually incurred by the City pursuant to this Agreement.

This Section 3. 02 shall survive termination of this Agreement and shall be binding on the
Developer regardless of the enforceability of any other provision of this Agreement.

3. 03. Attorneys' Fees.  The Developer agrees to pay the City' s costs and expenses, including
reasonable attorneys'  fees, in the event a suit or action is brought by the City against the
Developer to enforce the terms of this Agreement.

3. 04. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, any attached exhibits and any addenda or amendments
signed by the parties shall constitute the entire agreement between the City and Developer, and
supersedes any other written or oral agreements between City and Developer.  This Agreement
can only be modified in writing signed by City and Developer.  The parties acknowledge that

amendments or modifications to this Agreement that, in the opinion of the City Administrator
substantially deviate from the approved final plat, shall require approval by the City Council.

3. 05. Assignment.  The Developer shall not assign any of its obligations under this Agreement
without the prior written consent of the City.

3. 06. Agreement to Run with Land. This Agreement shall be recorded among the land records of
Hennepin County, Minnesota.  The provisions of this Agreement shall run with the Property and
be binding upon the Developer and its assigns or successors in interest.  Notwithstanding the
foregoing, no conveyance of the Property or any part thereof shall relieve the Developer of its
liability for full performance of this Agreement unless the City expressly so releases the
Developer in writing.

3. 07. Representatives Not Individually Liable. No officer, agent or employee of the City shall be
personally liable to the Developer, or any successor in interest, in the event of any default or
breach by the City on any obligation or term of this Agreement.

3. 08. Notices and Demands. Any notice, demand, or other communication under this Agreement
by either party to the other shall be sufficiently given or delivered if it is dispatched by registered
or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, or delivered personally:

a)      As to the Developer:    J. E.P. Developments, LLC

Attn: Shawn R. Peterson

2434 Meadow Oak Avenue

Monticello, MN 55362

41-



b)     As to the City:     City of Greenfield
Attn:  City Administrator
7738 Commerce Circle

Greenfield, MN 55373

or at such other address with respect to either such party as that party may, from time to time,
designate in writing and forward to the other as provided in this section 3. 08.

3. 09.  Park Dedications/Fees/Dedications.    Without limitation of any other obligation of the
Developer contained in this Agreement or set forth in federal, state, or local law, the Developer

agrees to comply with any dedication requirements, including park dedications or payments in lieu
which may be required by the City' s subdivision regulations, Greenfield City Code Chapter 15.
The Developer shall provide the City with a payment in lieu of a park dedication as calculated
pursuant to the City' s subdivision regulations, in the amount of $52,500 ($ 3, 500 per proposed

housing unit), to be paid upon execution of this Agreement.

The Developer further expressly acknowledges and agrees that the road Improvements and
all easements and other rights in the Property necessary and related to the City' s ownership of the
Improvements shall inure to the City upon the Developer' s compliance with this Agreement, and
upon acceptance by the City of the Improvements.

3. 10. Disclaimer of Relationships.  The Developer acknowledges that nothing contained in this
Agreement nor any act by the City or the Developer shall be deemed or construed by the
Developer or by any third person to create any relationship of third-party beneficiary, principal
and agent, limited or general partner, or joint venture between the City and the Developer.

3. 11. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of
which shall constitute one and the same instrument.

3. 12. Choice of Law and Venue.   This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the state of Minnesota.   Any disputes, controversies, or claims
arising out of this Agreement shall be heard in the state or federal courts of Minnesota, and all

parties to this Agreement waive any objection to the jurisdiction of these courts, whether based
on convenience or otherwise.

3. 13. Indemnification.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the City, its
officers, agents, and employees shall not be liable or responsible in any manner to the Developer,
Developer' s successors or assigns,  the Developer' s contractors or subcontractors,  material

suppliers, laborers, or to any other person or persons for any claim, demand, damage, or cause of
action of any kind or character arising out of or by reason of the execution of this Agreement or
the performance and completion of the Improvements.   The Developer, and the Developer' s

successors or assigns, agree to protect, defend and save the City, and its officials, agents, and
employees, harmless from all such claims, demands, damages, and causes of action and the
costs,  disbursements,  and expenses of defending the same,  including but not limited to,
attorneys'   fees,  consulting engineering services,  and other technical,  administrative or

professional assistance.  Nothing in this Agreement shall constitute a waiver or limitation of any

42-



immunity or limitation on liability to which the City is entitled under Minnesota Statutes,
Chapter 466, or otherwise.

3. 14. Occupancy Permits. No occupancy permits shall be issued until:

A.       The site grading and base course paving are completed by the Developer and
approved by the City;

B.       All utilities are tested, approved by the City, and in service;
C.       All permit fees and known development costs are paid in full; and
D.       No Certificate of Occupancy will be issued until all work on structures is

completed to the satisfaction of the Building Official.

The Developer, in executing this Agreement, assumes all liability and costs for damage or
delays, incurred by the Developer or the City, in the construction of the Improvements, caused
by the Developer, its employees, contractors, subcontractors, materialmen or agents.

3. 15.   Miscellaneous Provisions.

A.       The Developer represents to the City that the development of the Property
complies with all applicable city, county, metropolitan, state and federal laws and regulations
including, but not limited to:  subdivision ordinances, zoning ordinances and environmental
regulations.   If the City determines that the development of the Property does not comply, the
City may, at its option, refuse to allow construction or development work on the Property until
the Developer does comply.  Upon the City' s demand, the Developer shall cease work until there
is compliance.

B.       Third parties shall have no recourse against the City under this Agreement.

C.       Breach of the terms of this Agreement by the Developer shall be grounds for
denial ofbuilding permits, including lots sold to third parties.

D.       Wherever possible, each provision of this Agreement and each related document
shall be interpreted so that it is valid under applicable law.  If any provision of this Agreement or
any related document is to any extent found invalid by a court or other governmental entity of
competent jurisdiction,' that provision shall be ineffective only to the extent of such invalidity,
without invalidating the remainder of such provision or the remaining provisions of this Agreement
or any other related document.

E.       If building permits are issued prior to the completion and acceptance of public
improvements, the Developer assumes all liability and costs resulting in delays in completion of
public improvements and damage to public improvements caused by the City, Developer, its
contractors, subcontractors, materialmen, employees, agents or third parties.

F.       No failure by any party to insist upon the strict performance of any covenant,
duty, agreement, or condition of this Agreement or to exercise any right or remedy consequent
upon a breach thereof, shall constitute a waiver of any such breach of any other covenant,

43-



agreement, term, or condition, nor does it imply that such covenant, agreement, term or condition
may be waived again.   The action or inaction of the City shall not constitute a waiver or
amendment to the provisions of this Agreement.  To be binding, amendments or waivers shall be
in writing and signed by the parties.  The City' s failure to promptly take legal action to enforce
this Agreement shall not be a waiver or release.

G.       Each right, power or remedy herein conferred upon the City is cumulative and in
addition to every other right, power or remedy, express or implied, now or hereafter arising,
available to the City, at law or in equity, or under any other agreement, and each and every right,
power and remedy herein set forth or otherwise so exciting may be exercised from time to time
as often and in such order as may be deemed expedient by the City and shall not be a waiver of
the right to exercise at any time thereafter any other right, power or remedy.

H.       This Agreement, together with the exhibits hereto, which are incorporated by
reference, constitutes the complete and exclusive statement of all mutual understandings between

the parties with respect to this Agreement, superseding all prior or contemporaneous proposals,
communications, and understandings, whether oral or written, pertaining to the subject matter of
this Agreement.

I. No officials,  agent or employee of the City shall be personally liable to
Developer, or any successor in interest, in the event of any default or breach by the City on any
obligation or term of this Agreement.

J. Data provided to the Developer or received from the Developer under this
Agreement shall be administered in accordance with the Minnesota Government Data Practices
Act, Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 13.

The remainder of thispage to remain intentionally blank].

44-



IN WITNESS OF THE ABOVE, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed
on the date and year written above.

CITY OF GREENFIELD

By:
Mayor

By:
City Administrator

STATE OF MINNESOTA    )

SS.

COUNTY OF HENNEPIN   )

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of

2016, by Brad Johnson and the Mayor

and Administrator, respectively, of the City of Greenfield, a Minnesota municipal corporation,
on behalf of the corporation.

Notary Public

J.E.P. DEVELOPMENTS, LLC

By:
Shawn R. Peterson

Its:      President

STATE OF MINNESOTA    )

SS.

COUNTY OFHENNEPiN    )

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of

2016, by Shawn R. Peterson, the President of J. E.P. Developments, LLC, a
Minnesota limited liability company, on behalf of the company.

Notary Public

45-



EXHIBIT A

Plan Exhibits

Name of Plan Date Last Updated

Construction Plan Set

Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan
SWPPP)

Final Plat

Demolition Plan

46-



EXHIBIT B

ESTIMATE OF IMPROVEMENT COSTS

The Developer shall be responsible to provide City with a financial guarantee in the amount of
125 percent of the following estimated costs for the Improvements:

Improvement Cost Estimate

A.  Site Grading Storm Sewer, Sediment and Erosion
Control Improvements 143, 234.00

B.  Street Construction 206,538.50

Total Estimated Improvement Costs=      349,772.50

Total Financial Guarantee Required (at 125% of
437,215. 63Construction Costs)

47-



r44C'C% rn'e'ft+     G
Review No. 2

ENGINEERING REVIEW

Hdlcan5on
Residential Subdivision

Anderson
for the City of Greenfield

by
Hakanson Anderson

Submitted to: Honorable Mayor and City Council

cc: Bonnie Ritter, City Administrator
Brad Scheib, City Planner
Ronald Wagner, P. E. City Engineer
Shawn Peterson, J.E.P. Development, LLC

Paul Otto, P. E. Otto Associates

Reviewed by: Ronald J. Wagner, P. E.

Brent M. Larson, P. E.

Date: September 13, 2016

Proposed

Development: Pheasant Meadows Estates

Street Location A portion of East'/ z of SE '/ of Section 22, T119, R24

Of Property:   North of CSAH 37 ( 70'
h

Street) and West of Quenroe Avenue

Applicant: Shawn Peterson

Developer: J.E.P. Develoment

2434 Meadow Avenue

Montecello, MN 55362

Owners of Record: Jerol E. Peterson Revocable Trust

Purpose: Pheasant Meadows Estates is a proposed 16 lot, 80+ acre rural

residential development within the City of Greenfield, Hennepin
County, Minnesota.  The proposed development will be served
with municipal storm water improvements and public streets

typical of an urban setting.

Jurisdictional Agencies:      City of Greenfield, Hennepin County, Minnesota Department of
but not limited to) Health, Minnesota Department of Natural Resources, Minnesota

Pollution Control Agency, Pioneer-Sarah Creek Watershed,
and the County Soil and Water Conservation District.

Permits Required:   NPDES Permit,

but not limited to)

48-



TABLE OF CONTENTS

INFORMATION AVAILIBLE

FINAL PLAT

CONSTRUCTION PLANS

COVER SHEET

STREET AND PROFILE

SWPP PLAN

DETAILS

SURFACE WATER MANAGEMENT

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS

SUMMARY AND/OR RECOMMENDATION

PAGE 2
S:\ Municipal\Agreenfield\ GF204\GF204 rvw2.docx

49-



INFORMATION AVAILABLE

Construction Plans for Pheasant Meadows Estates, 8/ 26/ 16 revision, by Otto Associates

Final Plat for Pheasant Meadows Estates, 8/ 26/ 16 revision, by Otto Associates

Hydrology Report for Pheasant Meadows Estates, 8/ 11/ 16, by Otto Associates

Preliminary Plat for Pheasant Meadows Estates, 8/ 26/ 16 revision, by Otto Associates

Preliminary Plans for Pheasant Meadows Estates, 7/ 11/ 16 revision, by Otto Associates

Certificate of Survey and Topographic Survey, dated 7/ 11/ 16, by Otto Associates

Wetland Delineation Report for J.E.P. Developments, dated 6/ 14/ 16, by Kjolhaug Environmental
Services, Inc.

Soil Boring Logs, dated 5/ 3/ 16, by Otto Associates

Additional Information

Minnesota Rules, Chapter 4410— EAW Requirement

City of Otsego Engineering Manual

City of Otsego Zoning and Subdivision Ordinances

National Wetland Inventory Map

PAGE 3
S:\ Municipal\Agreenfield\ GF204\GF204 rvw2.docx

50-



FINAL PLAT

1. Eastman Lane shall be named Ingram Street.

2. A temporary easement on a deed form shall accompany the final plat at the time of
recording for the temporary cul-de- sac at the north end of Ingram Street.

CONSTRUCTION PLANS

Cover Sheet( Sheet 1)

3.       A demolition/removal information as well as lowest allowable floor/opening elevations,
and needed. All setbacks shall be shown in the plans as well. We recommend providing
the lowest floor and setback information on separate plan sheets.

4.       A" Reviewed by the City Engineer" approval signature line for Ronald J. Wagner, P. E
somewhere on the cover sheet shall be provided.

5.       Eastman Lane shall be named Ingram Street.

Street Plan ( Sheets 2- 3)

6. Spot elevations and/ or% grades around the cul-de-sac shall be labeled.

7. The EOF for the north pond is labeled 1007. 3 on sheet 3 and 1007. 1 in the details.

8. Provide the% grade for each storm sewer pipe.

9.       All storm sewer shall be corrugated metal or double wall plastic pipe.  The PVC inlet

pipes to all the Outlet Control Structures shall be revised.

10.      The high/low point station and elevation for each vertical curve shall be listed.

11.      Do to the distance from the outlet pipe and the edge of the wetland it appears that there
may be potential erosion issues from the discharge point of the South Pond to the
wetland.  Additional erosion control in this area should be considered or atleast erosion

shall be monitored and addressed after construction has been complete.

12.      Callout/show the indented maintenance path to access each pond' s Outlet Control
Structure and overflow.   This access shall be covered by easement and shall have
traversable slopes by vehicle.

SWPP Plan( Sheet 4-7)

13.      The hydrology report identifies the existing soils as Hydrologic Type C and the SWPPP
has Type C/ D. Provide clarification or justification why infiltration is not being used
required for Type C soils) for this site per the NPDES permit for the water quality

volume.

PAGE 4
S:\ Municipal\Agreenfield\ GF204\GF204 rvw2.docx

51-



Details ( Sheet 8- 9)

14.      The proposed typical street cross- section meets the City standard widths for a Local
Street.   The typical section thicknesses shall be based on a Geotechnical Engineers

recommendation.

SURFACE WATER MANAGMENT

15.      See Comment# 13.

16.      The stormwater management plan dated 6/29/ 16 was been submitted to the Watershed
Management Organization( WMO) for review and approval. The stormwater management
plan was revised per the Pioneer-Sarah Creek Watershed Management Commission

PSCWMC) review dated 7/20/ 16 with the following comments still need to be addressed:

a.   Rule D.5. a.i—The mean average depth for the central pond doesn not meet NURP

standards( 4.0' required per recommendation# 4).

b.  Rule D.5. a.ii - Unless the City of Greenfield agrees to undertake all future
operation and maintenance on the ponds, an agreement between the developer

and City, as approved by the Commission, must be recorded on the deed to the
property. A copy of the recorded agreement and O& M plan must be provided to
the Commission.

c.   Rule D.7 - Pond Operation and Maintenance.  If the City of Greenfield does not
agree to the long term operation and maintenance of the stormwater ponds, an
acceptable operation and maintenance agreement between the City of Greenfield
and the property owner of the pond must be developed and recorded on the
property.    A copy of the recorded documents must be provided to the
Commission.

d.  Rule E. 10

b.Temporary riser outlets to the sediment ponds must be provided. (There

is a detail for these but that shall be called out in the plans also.)

d.The temporary ponds must be constructed as part of the initial rough
grading. This must be noted in the SWPPP construction sequencing.

e. Temporary and permanent vegetation must be established on all cropland
areas. If the existing crop ( rye grass) is to be permanent, this must be
noted on the plans

17.      All culverts have been designed to handle a minimum of the 10- yr storm event and do

not appear to floor the road during a 100- yr event.

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS

18.      Final street section is to be determined by a Geotechnical Engineer.  The geotechnical

report shall be provided.

19.      The Conservation Easement description/exhibit is necessary.

20.      The demolition/removal information is needed for the existing structures on Lot 1, Block
I and Lot 1, Block 2.

PAGE 5
S:\ Municipal\ Agreenfield\ GF204\GF204 rvw2.docx

52-



21.      The lowest allowable opening/level is necessary for each house.  The building, wetland,
wetland buffer, and ISTS setbacks shall be shown.  We recommend providing a separate

Development Plan" sheet with this information. A note stating all wells shall be setback
from a well should also be included.

22.      Per the PSCWMC review letter, " A wetland delineation was submitted for review and

approval on July 5, 2016.   A WCA notice of application was sent for public review,

requesting comments until August 1, 2016.  Subsequent site visits by staff identified one
additional small wetland area.  This will be added to the site plans and the delineation
will be approved after the comment period closes." It shall be verified that this additional

wetland has been added.

23.      The Septic System Design/Report shall be submitted for identified primary and
secondary septic areas.

SUMMARY AND/OR RECOMMENDATION

We recommend approval contingent on the above comments being addressed.

PAGE 6
S:\ Municipal\Agreenfield\ GF204\ GF204 rvw2.docx

53-



4{ 4 CA C 4--) {-

CITY OF GREENFIELD
RESOLUTION NO. 16-26

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PRELIMINARY PLAT OF THE
PHEASANT MEADOWS ESTATES SUBDIVISION

WHEREAS, the applicant, Shawn Peterson (representing J. E. P. Development, LLC), has requested

preliminary plat approval for the property at 7745 Greenfield Road, Greenfield, Minnesota which is
legally described as the East Half of the Southeast Quarter of Section 22, Township 119, Range 24,
Hennepin County, Minnesota; and,

WHEREAS, the requested preliminary plat is to allow for the platting of sixteen ( 16) single family
residential lots varying in size from 2.6 acres to 9.9 acres on 80. 1 total acres; and,

WHEREAS, Staff has reviewed the preliminary plat request and issued a staff report dated July 12,
2016 to the Planning Commission finding that the plat is consistent with City Comprehensive Plan and
the City's Zoning and Subdivision Codes with conditions; and,

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on July 12, 2016 to consider the
request and recommended approval of the preliminary plat with conditions; and,

WHEREAS, the adjacent property owners have been informed of the project; and,

WHEREAS, the applicant has addressed a number of conditions identified by the Planning Commission
and a revised staff report has been issued dated July 28, 2016.

iNOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the Greenfield, the City does hereby
approve the preliminary plat for Pheasant Meadows Estates as requested with the following conditions:

1.  All Individual Sewage Treatment Systems ( ISTS) constructed on greater than 12% slopes and
trench systems constructed on greater than 18% slopes shall be treated as other systems and

shall be subject to review and approval by the Wastewater Commission.

2.  Park dedication shall be paid in cash for the fifteen ( 15) new lots as per the City of Greenfield' s
current fee structure.

3.  The applicant shall enter into a development agreement with the City. The agreement shall be
as approved by the City Attorney and City Council and shall include, but not be limited to,
financial guarantee for the installation of" Eastman Road" and compliance with conditions of
approval.

4.  Right-of-way for Greenfield Road shall be properly dedicated to the City of Greenfield.

5.  The Hennepin County Environmental Health Department shall approve the location of the septic
sites for the subdivision before the final plat may be submitted.

6.  Prior to the issuance of building permits for individual lots, site and grading plans shall be
administratively reviewed relative to locating of private well and septic sites and stormwater
management standards.

54-



7.  The applicant shall submit, as part of the Final Plat application submission, updated drawings
for the Streets Plan, Grading and Drainage Plan, and SWPPP to reflect the realignment of
Eastman Road" as proposed in the Preliminary Plat drawing dated July 27, 2016.

8.  The existing structures on the property at 7745 Greenfield Road which are proposed to remain
on the proposed parcels of Block 1, Lot 1 and Block 2, Lot 1, shall meet all applicable setback,
screening, and design standards for new principal and accessory structures set forth in Chapter
152: Zoning, of the City Code; all other structures which are non-compliant shall be removed.

9.  The applicant shall meet the recommendations as written by the Pioneer-Sarah Watershed
Management Commission in their letter dated July 20, 2016, as presented to the City Council on
August 3, 2016.

10. Storm warning siren fees shall be paid in cash as per the City of Greenfield' s current fee structure.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the City Council of the Greenfield, does hereby
base its approval of the preliminary plat for Pheasant Meadows Estates as requested on the followingfindings of fact:

1.  The criteria for Preliminary Plats included in City Code Section 151. 06 are met.
2.  The proposed subdivision meets the standards of the RR Rural Residential Zoning District, as

seen in City Code Section 152.055 are met.

3.  The proposed subdivision complies with the City's Comprehensive Plan and proposes uses and
density which are in compliance.

Adopted by the Greenfield City Council on August 3, 2016.

Mayor Brad Ohnson

jA A _X

Attest:  Bonnie Ritter, City Administrator-Clerk

55-



r17AVALV y -- V I.      I   _

Human Services And Public Health Department 2016 PERMIT APPLICATION
Public Health Protection INDIVIDUAL SEWAGE
Epidemiology and Environmental health TREATMENT SYSTEM
1011 South First Street, Suite 215
Hopkins, Minnesota 55343- 9413
612) 543-5200

permit must be obtained before commencing any activity requiring a permit under Hennepin County
Ordinance No. 19-- Individual Sewage Treatment Systems Standards. Please check the following that apply and
remit application, fee and supporting information to this office. It is the duty of the permitee to notify the
Health Authority of the date/time the inspection is needed at least 24 hrs before requested.

Excluding weekends and holidays)
Property Owner Name: JEROL E PETERSON Residence or Business: Residential
Address: 7745 GREENFIELD RD Phone:

City/Zip:GREENFIELD 55357 Est. Start Date:
Parcel#: 22 119 24 41 0001 Township:      Section:

All permit fees include design/plan review and construction inspections.

Permits for holding tanks will be issued when no other reasonable system can be installed

A permit is required for abandoning an existing system that is not part of the installation of a new/replacement system. All systems must be
pumped prior to abandonment.

When a septic tank is pumped by a licensed pumper, a filing fee and pumping activity log shall be submitted to Hennepin County within 30 days
of the activity.

2621 INDUSTRIAL CT
Designer: OTTO EXCAVATING INC HASTINGS, MN 55033 L110

Name Address MPCA License#

Designer 2: MN

Name Address MPCA License#

Inspector:  MN

Name Address MPCA License#

taller:    MN
Name Address MPCA License#

Pumper:    MN

Name Address MPCA License#

I certify that the information on the forms provided are accurate and complete.
JEP

Applicant's Name:     SHAWN PETERSON Company Name:   DEVELOPMENTS,  Phone:     ( 763) 390- 1484

LLC

Signature:
Date:     08/05/2016

Checks or money orders should be made payable to: HENNEPIN COUNTY TREASURER. Permit expires one year after
issuance.

For Office Use Only INSPECTOR NOTE: Please see attached letter.
Permit# 16GRF058

LARGE PLOT TO BE DIVIDED INTO 16 HOMESTEADS. ONLY THEReceipt# 699943
SE CORNER HAS A HOME ON IT.Approved by: Matt Bolterman

12/2006

56-



Hennepin County Human Services and Public Health Department

Sul

pi emiology and Environmental Health Epidemiology  ( 612) 543- 52301011 South First Street, Suite 215 Environmental Health. ( 612) 543- 5200Hopkins, MN 55343- 9413 FAX: ( 952) 351- 5222

Soil Boring Review for 16 lot plat
7745 Greenfield Rd

Greenfield MN 55357
Shawn Pederson

J.E.P. Development

August 5, 2016

Hennepin County has verified the soil borings done by Otto and Associates
and confirmed that there are 2 standard type 1 septic sites for each of the new
lots proposed.  Full designs will have to be done at time of installation.

If you have any questions please let me know.

Sincerely,

Matt Bolterman, RS

Senior Environmental Health Inspector

612- 919- 9221 matthew.bolterman@hennepin. us

i i_ i_,r l Up, c t, itV l rrplc;y
f E: Cyi iFCi ' apei

57-



io er-

a h Creek

rshed Management Commission
ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE: 3235 Fernbrook Lane N• Plymouth, MN 55447
763. 553. 1144• Fax: 763.553.9326• judie@jass.biz

TECHNICAL ADVISOR: Hennepin County Environment and Energy Department
701 Fourth Avenue S. MC 609• Minneapolis, MN 55415
612.348. 7338 • james.kujawa@hennepin.us

Pheasant Meadows Estates
Greenfield, Proiect #2016-04

Project Overview: This site is an 80 acre parcel located on the west side of Greenfield Road
about %2 mile north of CSAH 50.  The applicant is proposing 16 single family lots on the
property.  Each lot averages about 3 acres of buildable area.   Our review will be for
conformance with the Commission' s third generation management plan.

Auolicant:  Shawn Peterson, 2434 Meadow Oak Avenue, Monticello, MN 55362. Phone: 612-
221- 0183.  Email: shawnpete@yahoo. com

Engineer/Aizent:  Otto Associates Engineers & Land Surveyors, Attn: Cara Schwahn Otto, 9
West Division Street, Buffalo, MN 55313. Phone: 763- 682-4727. Email:
cara@ottoassociates. com

Exhibits:

1)  2016-04 PSCWMC Request for Plan Review and fee submittal, received July 12, 2016.
2)  2016-03 PSCWMC Request for Wetland Delineation review and approval with fee

submittal, received June 20, 2016.
3)  Preliminary Plat of Pheasant Meadows Estates by Otto Associates dated May 15, 2016,

revised June 29, 2016.
4)  Pheasant Meadows Estates Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan by Otto Associates 4 of

4 sheets dated June 29, 2016.
5)  Hydrology Report for Pheasant Meadows Estates by Otto Associates dated June 29,

2016.

6)  Greenfield Road Site Wetland Delineation Report, by Kjolhaug Environmental Services
Co. dated June 14, 2016.

a.  Notice ofMN WCA Application for boundary/type determination dated July 11,
2016.

Findings;

1)  A complete application was received July 12, 2016. The initial 60-day review period for
a decision by the Commission, per MN Statute 15. 99, expires September 10, 2016.

2)  This property drains into three large wetlands that drain to the north. These wetlands are
connected into County Ditch# 9 that drains into the Crow River just north of the
intersection of Vernon Avenue at CSAH 10.

3)  Per the PSCWMC Yd

Generation SWMP, Rule D, section 2 this site must be reviewed
and approved by the Commission for development;

a.   On land that disturbs more than one acre( stormwater management, erosion and
sediment control rule D),

b.  On land adjacent to wetlands and watercourses where no impacts will occur
Buffer Strips and wetlands) and

c.   On land within the 1% chance( 100 year) floodplain (rule F)

58-



Pheasant Meadows Estates, Greenfield
2016-04

July 20, 2016

Rule D. Stormwater Management
4)  One street, ending in a temporary cul-de- sac at the north edge of this site will bisect this

property.  Rural ditch sections will be constructed to collect street and front yard water
from the site, routing it into stormwater ponds.

5)  Three ponds are proposed to collect and treat the majority of the street and front yard
water of this development.

a.   The ponds will be constructed to National Urban Runoff Program (NURP) pond
requirements

i.  The mean average depth for the central pond does not meet NURP
standards.

ii.  Unless the City of Greenfield agrees to undertake all future operation and
maintenance on the ponds, an agreement between the developer and City,
as approved by the Commission, must be recorded on the deed to the
property. A copy of the recorded agreement and O& M plan must be
provided to the Commission.

6)  Water Rate Flows; Post development runoff flows will meet the Commission standard for
2, 10 and 100 ear rates at or less than re-develo ment.  They are follow;

2- Year( 2. 85")  10-Year( 4.23") 100- year( 7. 13")

Runoff Rate( cfs)      Runoff Rate( cfs)     Runoff Rate ( cfs)
Pre-Development 62. 7 119.3 244.8
Post-Development 36.6 85. 8 199. 1

7)  Pond Operation and Maintenance.  If the Cit ofy Greenfield does not agree to the long
term operation and maintenance of the stormwater ponds, an acceptable operation and
maintenance agreement between the City of Greenfield and the property owner of the
pond must be developed and recorded on the property. A copy of the recorded
documents must be provided to the Commission.

8)  Nutrient and TSS loads will meet the Commission standards.
a.   The three ponds will be utilized to control nutrients and TSS,
b.  Pre-development phosphorus loads are approximately 50 lbs/year. Post

development loads are modeled at 16.3 lbs/year
c.   Pre development TSS loads are estimated at 26,400 lbs/year( based on 44 acres of

cropland @ 600#/year). Post development TSS is 4, 618 lbs/year.
9)  Volume abstraction will meet the Commission requirements.

a.  Abstraction necessary= 6, 189 cubic feet.
i.  After subtracting disconnected areas ( based on 75' ofpermanent

grassibuffer for overland flow or 300' of grass for channel flows) there
will be 1. 55 acres of impervious area that must meet the Commission 1. 1"
abstraction requirements.

b.  Abstraction provided= 6, 808 cubic feet.
i.   163, 403 sq. $.( 3. 75 acres) of conservation/ buffer and preservation

easement areas are proposed for abstraction credits (0. 5" credit over
buffer/preservation areas)

ii.  The areas proposed to be preserved as undisturbed forest must remain
undisturbed during construction and must be protected by a permanent

59-



Pheasant Meadows Estates, Greenfield
2016-04

July 20, 2016

conservation easement prescribing allowable uses and activities on the
parcel and preventing future development. A long-term vegetation
management plan describing methods ofmaintaining the conservation area
in a natural vegetative condition must be submitted with the stormwater
management plan.  The permanent easement must be submitted to the City
of Greenfield in a form acceptable to both the City and Commission.

Rule E, Grading, Erosion and Sediment Control plans meet the Commission standards.
10) Initial grading will consist of road and pond construction.

a.   Permanent ponds must be utilized as temporary sediment ponds until permanent
vegetation is established in the watershed leading to it.

b.  Temporary riser outlets to the sediment ponds must be provided.
c.   Temporary riser outlet details are necessary on the site plan.
d.  The temporary ponds must be constructed as part of the initial rough grading.

This must be noted in the SWPPP construction sequencing.
e.   Temporary and permanent vegetation must be established on all cropland areas.

If the existing crop ( rye grass) is to be permanent, this must be noted on the plans.
11) Home construction will be graded on a site by site basis when the home is built.

a.   The City of Greenfield must ensure erosion and sediment is controlled during the
building process.

Rule I Buffer requirements.
b.  All wetland buffer areas must be monumented.  Site plans must show

monumentation locations.
c.   Proposed buffer areas that have not been in permanent vegetation for at least 5

years must planted with native vegetation. The buffer strip planting areas must be
identified in the project review application materials. Acceptable buffer strip
design, planting methods and maintenance must be provided.

d.  
The applicant must submit to the member city, in a form acceptable to the City
and Commission, a recordable conservation easement for protection of approved
buffer strips. The easement shall describe the boundaries of the watercourse or
wetland and buffer strips, identify the monuments and monument locations, and
prohibit any of the alterations ( as set forth in paragraph 5, Rule I, Appendix C
PSCWMC Yd

Generation Watershed Management Plan).
Rule F. Floodnlains

12) The large wetlands are designated by FEMA as Zone A floodplain areas.  These are areas
considered as special flood hazard areas subject to inundation by the 1% annual flood
chance.  There are no base flood elevations for Zone A floodplain areas.

13) Because this site will be utilized for single family residential homes and because in most
cases mortgage companies require flood insurance when property has a floodplain
designation, we recommend the City and applicant determine the 1% chance flood

elevations for the floodplains on this parcel and obtain a letter ofmap amendment on the
properties located in the floodplains in this development.

Other

14) A wetland delineation was submitted for review and approval on July 5, 2016. A WCA
notice of application was sent for public review, requesting comments until August 1,
2016.  Subsequent site visits by staff identified one additional small wetland area. This

60-



Pheasant Meadows Estates, Greenfield

2016- 04

July 20, 2016

will be added to the site plans and the delineation will be approved after the comment

period closes.

15) The Commission recommends the City of Greenfield to establish animal unit, storage and
siting standards for livestock on this site.

Recommendation:

1)  To meet the Commission abstraction standards, buffer and preservation easement

documentation must be provided with preliminary approvals from the City and
Commission.

2)  Erosion controls must meet item 10 above

3)  Long term pond operation and maintenance must be determined per item 7
4)  The center pond must be designed to meet a mean average depth of 4. 0 feet.

Hennepin County
Department of Environment and Energy
Advisor to the Commission

July 20, 2016
Date

James C. Kujawa

Location

1. 3

1.   CORCORAN
GREENFOUD

4

19,

ROCKFORD

o

55

a

139'      L0REht0

INDEPENDENCE

n4 i

j

g
11s

61-



Pheasant Meadows Estates, Greenfield
2016-04

July 20, 2016

Aerial View

III K
f i

It

r

t     }-

f e  -      1   

T

r
i... 

1.   

s§r t

z «'

y,L
y     

XY,' :'  

F

s    ~

tu

OR-       4
OWI

Ir

41,

Hafton

Lake

t2v

A`
4

i

a

62-



Pheasant Meadows Estates, Greenfield
2016- 04

July 20, 2016

Grading Plan

t

J

Pond Area

fly s

gU F

Easement Area 1

P

r\{
ck Ii

J

y

l

I 4j

I

1 r i'     J
Fri 71#"'  T

L,    e , !   
I       •

I  \,!    flfr%     ! it I
a     \

l it ,  Fi  -  -(/  
R,

l   " t•-    
d! I

j..'

N



MISMEMORANDUMHoisiVou Koe ler Group Inc. 

ffin

To:   Greenfield City Council and Administrator

From:       Brad Scheib, Consulting Planner

Subject:     Comprehensive Plan update scope and budget

Date: 15 September 2016

For the last couple of months we have had discussions surrounding updating of the comprehensive plan. The
comprehensive plan needs updating for two reasons. First, state law requires it be done. Second, there are
many values and benefits to the City of Greenfield in undertaking a planning process to engage the community,
affirm the vision, and ensure that the City land use and development policy will help move the community in a
positive direction towards its vision.

In listening to the Council discuss matters of a community growth and development significance, it is apparent
to me that you all recognize the value of comprehensive planning for the benefit of Greenfield and not simply
because it is a state law. The objective of a comprehensive plan should be first and foremost to guide the

growth and development of Greenfield in an efficient and sustainable manner. A secondary objective is to
satisfy the requirements of the land planning act. If the first objective is done well, the second objective should
be largely satisfied.

We have provided a work scope that is intended to do more than just check off the required boxes to update

the comprehensive plan. The tasks outlined in our scope provide a thorough process to help understand what
Greenfield desires for the future of the city, to explore ideas and evaluate the implications of key policy
directions, to help the community understand those implications, and to enable the elected leaders of the
community to make informed decisions pertaining to the growth and development of Greenfield.

The total estimated cost for professional services( not including city staff time) to complete the project as
outlined in the attached scope of work is a not to exceed fee of$ 64,000. This fee is broken down in greater

detail by various parts in the table on the following page. This breakdown provides a task by task and key
element break down of the work program. The process is a very integrated and iterative process so this

breakdown of budget is not necessarily a menu of items, but more a way to help understand the scope of work
and required budgetary impacts for professional services based on individual components. Deleting or
modifying an element will have impacts on other task budget estimates that will need to be re-evaluated.

The schedule or duration to complete the defined scope of work is typically a 9-12 month process to complete
the draft plan and make submission to the Metropolitan Council.

123 North Third Street, Suite 100, Minneapolis, MN 55401- 1659

Ph( 612) 338-0800 Fx( 612) 338-6838 www.hkgi.com

Direct( 612) 252-7122 Email brad@hkgi.com

64-



Greenfield Comprehensive Plan Update
15 September 2016

Page 2

OutsideTaskFee Estimate
Hours Estimate

1. 0 Project Kick-off( all tasks)   40 3,800

2.0 Existing conditions and community
110 11,200

Visioning
Existing conditions analysis and

70 2,000
reporting

Community Engagement and CC
40 4,200

workshops

3.0 Explore Future Directions 250 28,000

Exploration of ideas
40 5,000

downtown/ civic center idea)

Exploration of ideas( alternative
development patterns and so 10,000

residential build out)

Exploration of ideas( business
40 5,000

park development concepts)

Community Engagement and City
80 8,000

Workshops

4.0 Prepare the Comprehensive Plan 160 16,000

Prepare plan document 120 11,500

City Meetings and Review
40 4,500

Workshops

5.0 Seek Approvals and Finalize the
40 4,000

Plan

Public hearing and approval
10 1,500

meetings

Plan submission and agency
30 2,500

coordination

Project Expenses( Travel for meetings,

plotting, printing/ reproductions, and 1,000

meeting supplies)

65-



Greenfield, MN Comprehensive Plan Update 2016

Attachment A —    ppProject Approach and Work Plan

Project Approach

The planning process will follow and the plan will be drafted consistent with the
requirements of the Land Planning Act and in coordination with Thrive MSP 2040,
and the associated System PIans and Policy Plans of the Metropolitan Council.
Additional regional plans and adjacent community plans will be considered relative to
impacts and coherency with Greenfield' s vision, goals, and priorities.
This process requires working closely with the City( City Council, City Staff, and/ or
other group as determined) to assist the consultant team with manageable tasks. This
will add value to the planning process by creating a stronger community connection,
reducing consultant time and budget, and inserting strong institutional knowledge of
Greenfield.

This process includes collaboration with the city staff and supporting outside
consultants. Funds have been set aside in the budget for outside services.

Throughout the planning process, HKGi will provide materials to City Staff for
posting on the city website, promoting/advertising public workshops, and presenting
updates to advisory boards/commissions and City Council.
Deliverables will be produced in a format that is highly interactive and useable from
an electronic format yet reproducible in hard copy and to simplify electronic
submission to the Metropolitan Council.

Project data will be assembled using user friendly and common software and will be
delivered to the client in a manner that allows staff to provide updates over time and
build on data.

The planning process for stakeholder engagement can vary dramatically and can
become quite costly. With the advent of online communications and social media,
demands for multiple forms of stakeholder engagement are ever increasing. Online
engagement is necessary, but not a replacement for face to face interaction. Our
process provides both online engagement and face to face interaction: however, in
order to manage a responsible budget estimate, we will rely on on- line engagement as
a way to collect input and disseminate information rather than facilitate dialogue and
discourse. Our stakeholder engagement process includes:

o Establishment of a project web site using the City' s website as a host site
o Establishment of a simple on line survey to facilitate community input
o Facilitation of two public/community workshops and a public hearing in an

open house format

o Use of the City Newsletter to provide periodic updates and announcements
o Building of a comprehensive plan focused email distribution list as a quick

blast for project updates and announcements.

o Promotion of a" photo contest" to help enhance the graphic intrigue of the
comprehensive plan

The Planning Process can have specific focus areas such as business park
development or establishment of a downtown/town center focus.

Hoisington Koegler Group Inc. © 2016 11 P a g e

66-



Greenfield, MN Comprehensive Plan Update 2016

Project Work Plan

The following represents the technical planning process( or work plan) for the Greenfield
Comprehensive Plan.

Task 9 - Project Kick-Off

Task 1 will serve as an orientation to the process for city staff, elected, and appointed
officials. This task will include a detailed project schedule and a review of project

expectations, roles and responsibilities, and key deliverables. In this task we will also
establish a baseline community engagement strategy and list of key stakeholder groups
that we plan to reach out to and engage in the process.

Subtasks include:
1. 1 Coordinate stakeholder engagement process

1. 2 Assemble background base mapping data and background documents
1. 3 Prepare detailed project schedule including key milestones and meeting dates
1. 4 Conduct Kick-off day session and meeting with City Council and Planning

Commission

1. 5 Coordinate with the city to provide content for a project website to be hosted on the
City' s web site and to initiate a community photo contest

1. 6 Conduct meeting with Metropolitan Council Sector representative to manage
expectations and understand required plan components.

Key Task 1 project deliverables:
Project base maps including existing conditions: land use, current comprehensive
plan, zoning, natural resources, transportation system, park/trail/open space

system, and infrastructure systems( sanitary sewer/potable water).
Detailed project schedule

Content for project website including photo contest rules
Meeting agendas, presentation materials, and summary notes

Task 2- Existing Conditions and Community Visioning

This task will include a focused audit of the physical community in Greenfield looking at
land use patterns, development constraints, natural resources, transportation systems,
infrastructure systems( capacities and service areas), demographic trends and future
projections. An existing conditions report will be produced as part of Task 2.

A public meeting will also be held as part of task 2 to introduce the planning process, and
engage the community in a visioning process to affirm what Greenfield might and should
look like 20 years into the future. This meeting will be used to review trend information
demonstrating the link between the built form of today' s community and what might be
desired as a future community. A specific focus on what a" downtown" serving

Hoisington Koegler Group Inc. © 2016 2 1 P a g e

67-



Greenfield, MN Comprehensive Plan Update 2016

Greenfield might look and feel like. What would it include? What would be needed to
achieve it? Where should it be? Etc... Additionally, we might explore alternative ways
to achieve economic development success. The visioning process does not mean
changing the current vision, but instead it is a process to affirm the current vision, and
explore other ideas through a community process.

Subtasks include:
2. 1 Prepare demographic and economic profile: prepare demographic profile using

state demographic data, US Census, and county and local data. Integrate data with
GIS Database.

2.2 Prepare land use analysis: analyze historic land use absorption, existing land use
inventory, development densities and patterns and land supply and demand. (A
specific focus could be to define optimal locations for a downtown/town center

type development node.)

2.3 Identify open space and natural resource connection/preservation opportunities:
explore linkages, stormwater management opportunities and park/open space

areas.

2.4 Identify existing street network and transportation systems including roads, trails,
and sidewalks.

2. 5 Evaluate park and recreation system needs: this task will include evaluating the
existing park and recreation system and how well it serves the current
development pattern and projected growth including athletic facilities.

2.6 Conduct stakeholder engagement( public workshop# 1): The purpose of the

meetings will be to present key information from the analysis, present current and
emerging planning trends and engage the community in a series of exercises to
explore vision and community goals.

2.7 Conduct project meetings# 2 and# 3 with the City: the first meeting in this task
will be to prepare for and coordinate task 2.6. The second meeting will be to
review findings and review Task 2 Existing Conditions Report.

2. 8 Prepare Existing Conditions Report

Key Task 2 project deliverables;
0 Meeting materials and supplies to facilitate Public Workshop# 1
0 Existing Conditions Report( to include text, maps, charts and graphics— one print

ready pdf file—City to be responsible for paper copy reproductions)

Task 3- Explore Future Directions: Vision, Goals and Polices

This task will utilize what is learned from Task 2 to begin exploring future directions.
Topics that will be explored include future land use distribution( jobs, housing and
shopping), development patterns and character( including a" downtown" concept and the
business park), parks, trail connectivity, infrastructure service and capacity, street
network and traffic circulation/patterns.

Hoisington Koegler Group Inc. © 2016 3 1 P a g e

68-



Greenfield, MN Comprehensive Plan Update 2016

Specific concepts can be explored for creation of a downtown or town center hub that

uniquely serves Greenfield, establishes identity, supports economic development
goals/objectives, and contributes to the financial sustainability of the City' s infrastructure
investments.

Subtasks include:

3. 1 Prepare vision and guiding principles draft memorandum.
3. 2 Explore alternative futures scenarios. Concepts will be articulated using text,

precedent photos, illustrations, maps and diagrams. Projections for development
and system demands( infrastructure, traffic, parks etc...) will be prepared as part

of the analysis in a technical memorandum form.
3. 3 Conduct stakeholder engagement public workshop# 2: this workshop will follow

a similar cycle as workshop# 1 but will be designed to present concept

alternatives and gain input from the community on a preferred direction.
3. 4 Summarize stakeholder engagement workshop
3. 5 Conduct City meetings# 4 and# 5: two meetings with the City will be conducted.

The first to review the vision and guiding principles and prepare for the public
workshop and the second to review key directions and findings.

3. 6 Summarize task 3 to include recommended plan directions and assist City staff
with providing updates to advisory boards and commissions.

Key Task 3 project deliverables:
Draft vision and guiding principles
Draft land use scenario concepts

Meeting materials and supplies to facilitate Public Workshop# 2
G]       Meeting agendas and summaries

Summary memorandum( task 3. 6)

Task 4- Prepare the Comprehensive Plan Update

This task will include drafting of the Comprehensive Plan update incorporating the goals,
polices and plan directions and including an emphasis element on the concept of a new
downtown/town center.

Subtasks include:
4. 1 Prepare draft comprehensive plan: assemble plan components to include the

following key elements: community background, vision and guiding principles,
land use master plan, park and recreation system plan, transportation network,

bike and pedestrian system plan, environmental systems and grey and green
infrastructure systems( sanitary sewer, potable water, storm sewer), housing and
economic development and implementation strategies/projects( capital

improvements, zoning recommendations, housing/economic development

Hoisington Koegler Group Inc. © 2016 4 1 P a g e

69-



Greenfield, MN Comprehensive Pian Update 2016

initiatives, downtown strategy etc.). The plan will be graphically compelling and
will include goal statements, policy statements, strategic initiatives, maps, charts,
diagrams, photos and illustrations. The plan will be drafted to meet all required

elements of the Land Planning Act and to reflect Greenfield' s role within the
region. This will include coordination with Thrive MSP 2040, associated System

Plans and Policy Plans.
4.2 Review draft plan with the City in two meetings(# 6 and# 7)

4.3 Review draft plan at joint CC and advisory committee meeting
4.4 Revise draft plan: up to two sets of revisions will be made to the draft plan prior

to seeking recommendations and approvals.
4.5 Conduct City meeting# 8: this task will be to review the final plan and to

coordinate final presentations.

Key Task 4 project deliverables:
Draft Plan( one reproducible hard copy and pdf file for each set of revisions)
Final Draft Plan ( one reproducible hard copy and pdf file)
Meeting materials, agendas, and summary notes

Task 5- Seek Approvals and Finalize the Plan

This task will include reviewing the plan following the required review and submission
process to the Metropolitan Council and seeking recommendations and ultimately
adoption from the City Council.

Subtasks include:
5. 1 Prepare review and presentation PowerPoint materials

5. 2 Attend up to two meetings: planning commission public hearing and final city
council adopting meeting. We recommend conducting the planning commission
public hearing in an open house format to enable general community review and
comment on the plan.

5. 3 Submit Plan and solicit review/comment from agencies( county, MnDOT, DNR,
watersheds, and adjacent communities)— include informal conversations/review

with Metropolitan Council Sector Rep.
5. 4 Address revisions and comments to the plan

5. 5 Prepare final plan document and submit to Metropolitan Council.

Key Task 5 project deliverables:
PowerPoint slide presentation for final plan (to be posted on city web site)
Final Plan Document( one reproducible hard copy and pdf file)
All electronic files packaged and to be retained by the City of Greenfield

is
Hoisington Koegler Group Inc. © 2016 5 1 P a g e

70-



City of Greenfield
City Council Meeting

September 20, 2016

TO: Honorable Mayor and Councilors

FROM:    Public Works Supervisor Jeremy Ketcher

SUBJECT:       Paved Street Patching

Mayor and Council:

The purposed streets to be patched this year are:
71 st Avenue North ( East of 71 st Lane North)

Country Lane
69th Lane North ( East of Pioneer Trail)

70th Avenue North

82"d Avenue North (one patch next to the intersection of Greenfield Road)

We have received quotes from ACI Asphalt, Metro Paving Inc., and Minnesota Roadways.  The quotes
are as follows:

Minnesota Roadways $64,675.38

Metro Paving Inc       $ 74,792.00

ACI Asphalt 86,911. 34

Staff recommendation is to award Minnesota Roadways the contract.

1 will be at the meeting to answer any questions.

71-



CITY OF GREENFIELD

RESOLUTION NO. 16-32

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING QUOTE FOR THE 2016 PAVED STREET PATCHING

WHEREAS, pursuant to a request for quotes for the 2016 Paved Street Patching Project, quotes were
received and tabulated with the following quotes received and complying with the advertisement:

Minnesota Roadways 64,675.38

Metro Paving, Inc. 74,792.00
ACI Asphalt 86,911. 34

AND WHEREAS, it appears that Minnesota Roadways submitted the lowest quote,

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Greenfield, Minnesota, that the Mayor
and City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to enter into a contract with Minnesota Roadways in
the name of the City of Greenfield for the 2016 Paved Street Patching Project for the contract price of

64,675.38.

Adopted by the City Council this 20"' day of September, 2016.

Mayor Brad Johnson

Attest: Bonnie Ritter, City Administrator-Clerk

1

72-



City of Greenfield
City Council Meeting

September 20, 2016

TO: Honorable Mayor and Councilors

FROM:    Public Works Supervisor Jeremy Ketcher

SUBJECT:       1 Ton Light Duty Dump Truck Replacement

Mayor and Council:

The 2002 One Ton Light Duty Dump Truck (1 Ton) currently in our fleet is fourteen years old.  Repair

costs since new, have exceeded $23,000. This number does not reflect scheduled maintenance costs,

e.g., tires, brakes, oil changes, etcetera.

Public Works staff received a bid for a new F-450 Supercab from Midway Ford along with a bid from
Tow Master for a dump body and snow removal equipment.  Both vendors offered state contract pricing
and their bids are as follows:

F-450 Light Duty Truck Chassis 48,390.01

Dump Body and Snow Removal Eauiament:  36,261. 00
Total 84,651. 01

Staff is recommending using funds from the General Capital Improvement Fund for this purchase.

I will be present at the meeting to answer any questions.

73-



City of Greenfield
City Council Meeting

September 20, 2016

TO: Honorable Mayor and Councilors

FROM:    City Administrator Bonnie Ritter

SUBJECT:       Ordinance to amend City Code as it relates to Lake Sarah regulations

Mayor and Council:

At the August 31d

meeting, the Council directed staff to check with the League and the City Attorney
regarding the amendment to the Code as it relates to Lake Sarah regulations. The Council' s concern
was stating that the Lake Sarah Association is responsible for the posting of the placement of
necessary buoys and signs for the no-wake restrictions.

Staff contacted both the League and attorney and both were under the consensus that the proposed
amendment is adequate, and if the Association doesn' t comply with the ordinance, the ultimate
responsibility of the notification would fall back on the cities. Also, the City's current liability insurance
would cover anyone from the Association performing the notification, just as it covers any member of
the public on City property.

The proposed ordinance is similar to the ordinance of the City of Independence so both cities will be
operating with the same regulations. The amendment was prompted by the desire to change both
cities' ordinances to state that the no-wake regulation is removed after three consecutive days of the

water receding below 981. 1, instead of removing the regulation immediately upon receding below
981. 1.

Staff recommends passing the enclosed ordinance.

74-



Ni t -  aA r Gia°     4 r

Uld . aO t &    03 .

CHAPTER 95.  LAKE SARAH REGULATIONS

Section

Surface Use Restrictions

95.01 Authority to regulate water surface use
95.02 Definitions
95.03 Slow-no-wake zone in channel
95.04 No wake at high water level
95.05 No wake regulations

95.06 Notification

95.07 Exemption

95.08 Enforcement

95.99 Penalty

SURFACE USE RESTRICTIONS

95.01 AUTHORITY TO REGULATE WATER SURFACE USE.

Pursuant to M. S. §§ 8613. 205 and 459.20, as they may be amended from time to time, the
city has entered into a joint powers agreement with the City of Independence for the purpose of
regulating the surface use of the body of water known as Lake Sarah. This chapter is effective
until repealed or until the joint powers agreement is terminated.
Prior Code, § 580.01) ( Am. Ord. 0-1 3A-02, passed 10- 15-2002)

95.02 DEFINITIONS.

For the purpose of this chapter, the following definitions shall apply unless the context
clearly indicates or requires a different meaning.

BOATING TERMS. Terms used in this chapter related to boating, including slow-no-wake
are defined in M. S. § 8613.005, as it may be amended from time to time.

75-



Greenfield City Code 95.02

LAKE SARAH. The body of water designated by the Minnesota Department of Natural
Resources as lake# 27- 191.  It is located in:  Sections 1 and 2, Township 118, Range 24; and in
Sections 34 and 35, Township 119, Range 24, Hennepin County, Minnesota.
Prior Code, § 580.01) ( Am. Ord. 0-1 3A-02, passed 10- 15-2002)

95.03 SLOW-NO-WAKE ZONE IN CHANNEL.

No person shall operate a water craft, including waterborne aircraft, in excess of slow-no-
wake speed in the channel separating the northerly and southerly halves of Lake Sarah as
delineated by markers, buoys or other aids to navigation placed by the city.
Prior Code, § 580.01) ( Am. Ord. 0-13A-02, passed 10- 15-2002)  Penalty, see § 95.99

95.04 NO WAKE AT HIGH WATER LEVEL.

Whenever the waters of Lake Sarah reach or exceed 981. 1 feet above sea level, for a

period of 3 consecutive days or more, as measured by the water level gauge set by the State
Department of Natural Resources on Lake Sarah, the City Administrator-Clerk or designee may,
upon notifying the Hennepin County Sheriff, establish a slow-no-wake zone on those portions of
the lake within the city. Both of the implementation and removal of these restrictions must be
done in coordination with similar actions by the City of Independence.
Prior Code, § 580.01) ( Ord. 0-5A-01, passed 6- 19-2001; Am. Ord. 0-13A-02, passed 10- 15-

2002)  Penalty, see § 95.99 (Ord. 2016-03, 9-20-2016)

95.05 NO WAKE REGULATIONS.

A)  No person shall operate a water craft, including aircraft, in excess of slow-no-wake
speed 24 hours per day when the high water slow-no-wake restrictions in § 95.04 are in effect.

B)  Effective date of slow no-wake regulation. A slow no-wake restriction shall become

effective upon the date specified by the City Administrator-Clerk and shall remain in effect until
the water level for the lake has receded below 981. 1 feet above sea level for at least three

consecutive days.

Prior Code, § 580.01) ( Am. Ord. 0-13A-02, passed 10- 15- 2002) Penalty, see § 95.99 (Ord.

2016- 03, 9-20-2016)

95.06 NOTIFICATION.

The City Administrator or designee shall notify the public of both implementation and
removal of the no-wake restrictions by causing the posting of the restriction at all public lake
access points prior to and during the time the restriction is in place, and posting the restriction at
city hall, and by other means as the Administrator determines to be reasonable.  The City is

76-



Greenfield City Code 95.06

responsible for providing adequate notification to the public. Placement of a sign at each public
water craft access outlining essential elements of this chapter, as well as the placement of
necessary buoys and signs shall be the responsibility of the Lake Sarah Improvement
Association.

Prior Code, § 580.01) ( Am. Ord. 0-1 3A-02, passed 10- 15-2002) (Ord. 2016-03, 9-20-2016)

95.07 EXEMPTION.

Enforcement, resource management and emergency personnel, while in the performance
of their official duties, are exempt from the provisions of this chapter.

Prior Code, § 580.01) ( Am. Ord. 0-1 3A-02, passed 10- 15-2002)

95.08 ENFORCEMENT.

The Hennepin County Sheriffs Department and special deputies appointed and sworn by
the Sheriff have primary responsibility for enforcing the provisions of this chapter, but that does
not preclude enforcement by other licensed peace officers.
Prior Code, § 580. 01) ( Am. Ord. 0-1 3A-02, passed 10- 15-2002)

95.99 PENALTY.

Any person violating this chapter, upon conviction, is guilty of a misdemeanor and subject
to a maximum fine or a maximum period of imprisonment, or both, as specified by M.S. §
609.03, as it may be amended from time to time.
Prior Code, § 580.01) ( Am. Ord. 0-1 3A-02, passed 10- 15- 2002)

77-



CITY OF GREENFIELD

ORDINANCE NO. 2016-03

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CITY CODE CHAPTER 95 AS IT RELATES TO
LAKE SARAH REGULATIONS

The City Council of the City of Greenfield, Minnesota, does ordain:

That Section 95.04, No Wake at High Water Level, be amended as follows:

95.04 NO WAKE AT HIGH WATER LEVEL.

Whenever the waters of Lake Sarah reach or exceed 981. 1 feet above sea level, for a
period of 3 consecutive days or more, as measured by the water level gauge set by the State
Department of Natural Resources on Lake Sarah, the City Administrator-Clerk or designee may,
at his eF heF upon notifying the Hennepin County Sheriff, establish a slow-no-wake
zone on those portions of the lake within the city. The slow no vake FestAGtien shall 19SGeme

level.

e# er.tive upon a date speGified by the City Adminis# ateF G"Ierk and- a-hall r-emain on effed until t
wateF level f9F the lake has FeGeded to 981. 1 feet above sea Both of the implementation

and removal of these restrictions must be done in coordination with similar actions by the City of
Independence.

newspapeF, posting the FestFiGtieR at all publiG lake aGG966 POWs PAOF t9 and duFiRg the time

That Section 95.05, No Wake Regulations, be amended as follows:

95.05 NO WAKE REGULATIONS.

A)  No person shall operate a water craft, including aircraft, in excess of slow-no-wake
speed 24 hours per day when the high water slow-no-wake restrictions in § 95.04 are in effect.

B)  Eff_ective date of slow no-wake regulation. A slow no-wake restriction shall become
effective upon the date specified by the City Administrator-Clerk and shall remain in effect until
the water level for the lake has receded below 981. 1 feet above sea level for at least three
consecutive days.

later.

78-



That Section 95.06, Notification, be amended as follows:

95.06 NOTIFICATION.

The City Administrator or designee shall notify the public of both implementation and
removal of the no-wake restrictions by causing the posting of the restriction at all public lake
access points prior to and during the time the restriction is in place, and posting the restriction at

city hall, and by other means as the Administrator determines to be reasonable. The City is
responsible for providing adequate notification to the public.    Placement of a

sign at each public watercraft access outlining essential elements of this chapter, as well as the
placement of necessary buoys and signs shall be the responsibility of the Lake Sarah
Improvement Association.

Passed by the City Council of the City of Greenfield on this 201' day of September, 2016.

Mayor Brad Johnson

Attest: Bonnie Ritter, City Administrator-Clerk

Published in the official newspaper on the 29th

day of September, 2016.
Effective on the 301

day of September, 2016.

79-



City of Greenfield
City Council Meeting

September 20, 2016

TO: Honorable Mayor and Councilors

FROM:    Bonnie Ritter, City Administrator

SUBJECT:       Step Increase for the Assistant to the City Administrator

Mayor and Council,

Per our personnel policy, I reviewed the performance appraisal for the Assistant to the
City Administrator Margaret Webb with the Employee Review Committee on September
14, 2016.

The result of that appraisal was to recommend to the City Council that Ms. Webb be
awarded a step raise from Step 5 to Step 6 ($ 24.15/ hr.) on the adopted pay scale,
effective on her anniversary date of August 4, 2016. This step increase represents a 2%
increase and is reflected in the 2016 and 2017 budgets.

80-


